
 

 

Tommy Dunn 
Chairman, District Five 

 
Brett Sanders 

V. Chairman, District Four 

PO Box 8002, Anderson, South Carolina 29622-8002 | www.andersoncountysc.org 
 
 

John B. Wright, Jr. 
District One 

 
Glenn Davis 

District Two 

Ray Graham 
District Three 

 
Jimmy Davis 

District Six 

M. Cindy Wilson 
District Seven 

 
VACANT 

Clerk to Council 

 
 
 

Rusty Burns 
County Administrator 

 
 

AGENDA  
ANDERSON COUNTY COUNCIL 

REGULAR MEETING 
Tuesday, October 19, 2021 at 6:30 p.m. 

Historic Courthouse 
101 S. Main Street 

 Anderson, South Carolina 
Chairman Tommy Dunn, Presiding 

 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
2. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE                                                 Hon. M. Cindy Wilson 
  
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES                        October 5, 2021 
     
4. CITIZENS COMMENTS              Agenda Matters Only 
 
5.  AC Planning Commission Meeting 
     a. Concerns                                                                                                  Hon. Jimmy Davis (allotted 10 minutes) 
                                                                                                                                                        
 
6. ORDINANCE THIRD READING: None 
  
 
7. ORDINANCE SECOND READING:  
 
a. 2021-057 An Ordinance to amend Ordinance #99-004, the Anderson County Zoning Ordinance, as adopted July 

20, 1999, by amending the Anderson County Official Zoning Map to rezone +/- 20.5 acres from C-2 (Highway 
Commercial District) to I-2 (Industrial Park District) on a parcel of land, identified as Highway 81 North & 
Evergreen Rd in the North Pointe Precinct shown in Deed Book 4293 page 163. The parcel is further identified as 
TMS #144-00-04-008. (DISTRICT 4) (PUBLIC HEARING-THREE MINUTE TIME LIMIT) 

Ms. Alesia Hunter (allotted 5 minutes) 
 

b. 2021-058 An Ordinance to amend Ordinance #99-004, the Anderson County Zoning Ordinance, as adopted July 
20, 1999, by amending the Anderson County Official Zoning Map to rezone +/- 16.22 acres from C-2 (Highway 
Commercial District) & R-15 (Single Family Residential) to R-M (Multifamily Residential) on a parcel of land, 
identified as Royal American Rd and Driftwood Way, in the Denver-Sandy Springs Precinct shown in Deed Book 
2462 page 186. The parcel is further identified as TMS #93-02-02-060, TMS #93-02-02-062, and TMS #93-02-02-
063. (DISTRICT 5) (PUBLIC HEARING-THREE MINUTE TIME LIMIT) 

Ms. Alesia Hunter (allotted 5 minutes) 
 
c. 2021-060 An Ordinance to amend an agreement for the development of a joint county industrial and business park 

(2010 park) of Anderson and Greenville counties so as to enlarge the park; and other matters related thereto. 
(PUBLIC HEARING-THREE MINUTE TIME LIMIT) 

Mr. Burriss Nelson (allotted 5 minutes) 
 



 
 
Anderson County Council Meeting Agenda, October 19, 2021 
Page 2 

 

   
 

 
 
 
 
8. FIRST READING  
 
a. 2021-062-An Ordinance to provide approval for Anderson county to grant a perpetual and non-exclusive   easement 

unto Duke Energy Carolinas, LLC. for the real property being 0.80 acres, common area, Halter Drive, Piedmont, 
SC 29673 bearing Anderson County tax map number 237-08-03-001 to facilitate the relocation of  the electric and 
communication lines; and other matters related thereto. 

Mr. Burriss Nelson (allotted 5 minutes) 
 

b. 2021-063-An Ordinance to amend an agreement for the development of a joint county industrial and business park 
(2010 park) of Anderson and Greenville counties so as to enlarge the park; and other matters related thereto (Project 
Storybook) 

Mr. Burriss Nelson (allotted 5 minutes) 
 

c. 2021-064 An Ordinance authorizing an amendment to an existing fee in lieu of tax agreement between Anderson 
County, South Carolina and Milliken & Company to extend the investment period for an additional five years, in 
return and expectation for additional investment in the county, and to provide for the provision of certain special 
source revenue credits/infrastructure improvement credits; and other matters related thereto. 

Mr. Burriss Nelson (allotted 5 minute) 
 

d. 2021-066- An Ordinance to amend an agreement for the development of a joint county industrial and business park 
(2010 park) of Anderson and Greenville counties so as to enlarge the park; and other matters related thereto. 
(Milliken) 

 
Mr. Burriss Nelson (allotted 5 minutes) 

 
e. 2021-067 An Ordinance authorizing (1) the execution and delivery of a fee in lieu of tax and incentive agreement 

by and between Anderson county, South Carolina (the “County”) and a company identified for the time being as 
Project Stingray, acting for itself, one or more affiliates, and/or other project sponsors (the “company”), pursuant to 
which the county shall covenant to accept certain negotiated fees in lieu of ad valorem taxes with respect to the 
expansion of certain facilities in the County (collectively, the “expansion project”); (2) the benefits of a multi-county 
industrial or business park to be made available to the company and the expansion project; (3) certain special source 
revenue credits in connection with the expansion project; and (4) other matters relating thereto.(TITLE ONLY) 

Mr. Burriss Nelson (allotted 5 minutes) 
 

f. 2021-068  An Ordinance authorizing (1) the conversion and re-documentation of that certain lease agreement 
between Anderson county, South Carolina (the “County”) and a company identified for the time being as Project 
Stingray, acting for itself, one or more affiliates, and/or other project sponsors, including all incentive arrangements 
set forth therein, pertaining to certain existing facilities located within the County; (2) the execution and delivery of 
one or more agreements, instruments, and other documents in connection with such conversion and re-
documentation; and (3) other matters relating thereto. (TITLE ONLY) 

Mr. Burriss Nelson (allotted 5 minutes) 
 
9. RESOLUTIONS:  
    
a. R2021-048- A Resolution authorizing a five year extension of the investment period under that certain fee in lieu 

of tax agreement between Anderson County, South Carolina and Milliken & Company; and other matters related 
thereto. 

Mr. Burriss Nelson (allotted 5 minutes) 
 
 



 
 
Anderson County Council Meeting Agenda, October 19, 2021 
Page 3 

 

   
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
b. R2021-049- A Resolution authorizing pursuant to title 12, chapter 44 of the code of laws of South Carolina 1976, 

as amended, the execution and delivery of an amendment to that certain amended & restated fee-in-lieu of ad 
valorem taxes and economic development agreement, by and between Anderson County, South Carolina, One 
World Technologies, Inc., as sponsor, and certain sponsor affiliates; and other related matters thereto. 

                                                      Mr. Burriss Nelson (allotted 5 minutes) 
 
 
c. R2021-050 A Resolution authorizing (1) the execution and delivery of a fee in lieu of tax and incentive agreement 

by and between Anderson County, South Carolina (the “County”) and a company identified for the time being as 
Project Stingray, acting for itself, one or more affiliates, and/or other project sponsors (collectively, the 
“company”), pursuant to which the county shall covenant to accept certain negotiated fees in lieu of ad valorem 
taxes with respect to the expansion of certain facilities in the County (collectively, the “expansion project”); (2) 
the benefits of a multi-county industrial or business park to be made available to the company and the expansion 
project; (3) certain special source revenue credits in connection with the expansion project; and (4) other matters 
relating thereto 

Mr. Burriss Nelson (allotted 5 minutes) 
 
 

10. REPORT FROM ATAX COMMITTEE 
Mr. Glenn Brill (allotted 5 minutes) 

 
11. APPROVAL OF MOTORGRADER 

Mr. Robert Carroll (allotted 5 minutes) 
 
12. TRANSFERS 

Ms. Rita Davis (allotted 5 minutes) 
    
13. APPOINTMENTS:  
 
 
14. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
       a. Discussion of an employment and appointment matter  
       b. Receipt of legal advice covered by the attorney client privilege regarding a Planning Commission website 

c.  Receipt of legal advice covered by attorney client privilege regarding mediation of Falcon Development’s     
appeal of two Planning Commission Decisions.  

       d. Council action following executive session 
 
15. REQUESTS BY COUNCIL   none 
             
16. ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT 
      a. Paving 
      b. Special Projects 
      c. Transfers 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
Anderson County Council Meeting Agenda, October 19, 2021 
Page 4 

 

   
 

 
 
 
 
 
17. CITIZENS COMMENTS               Non-Agenda Matters 
 
18. REMARKS FROM COUNCIL 
 
19. ADJOURNMENT 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
Anyone who requires an auxiliary aid or service for effective communication, or a 

modification of policies or procedures in order to participate in this program, service 
or activity please contact the office of the program, service or activity as soon as 

possible but no later than 24 hours before the scheduled event. For assistance, please 
contact the Clerk to Council at (864) 260-1036. 



State of South Carolina   )

County  of     Anderson   )

ANDERSON COUNTY COUNCIL
 

SPECIAL PRESENTATION MEETING

OCTOBER 5, 2021

IN ATTENDANCE:
TOMMY DUNN, CHAIRMAN
RAY GRAHAM
BRETT SANDERS
JOHN WRIGHT
CINDY WILSON
JIMMY DAVIS
GLENN DAVIS

ALSO PRESENT:
RUSTY BURNS
LEON HARMON
JANIE TURMON
    



Anderson County Council - Special Presentation Meeting - October 5, 2021
2

1 TOMMY DUNN:    At this time I’d like to
2 call the special presentation meeting of Anderson
3 County, October 5th, to order.  I’d like to thank
4 everyone for coming.  Welcome everybody for being here
5 tonight.  
6 We’ll start off with Resolutions and Proclamations
7 2(a), R2021-046, it’s a proclamation declaring October
8 as Disability Awareness Month, and other matters
9 related thereto.  Councilman Wright.
10 JOHN WRIGHT:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
11 This is a Proclamation in conjunction with Governor
12 McMaster.  So I’d like to read that here tonight.  It
13 is the governor’s proclamation.
14 WHEREAS, South Carolinians with disabilities have
15 the same aspirations to competitively work and
16 contribute to their communities as everyone else; and
17 WHEREAS, business and community leaders have called
18 for a diverse and capable workforce to further advance
19 the economy of the Palmetto State; and 
20 WHEREAS, the support and cooperation of all people
21 are needed to reduce the attitudinal and physical
22 barriers that hinder full acceptance of people with
23 disabilities in their rightful place of employment; and 
24 WHEREAS, Employment First, that employment in the
25 general workforce is the first and preferred outcome in
26 the provision of publicly funded services for all
27 working age citizens with disabilities, regardless of
28 level of disability, is implemented in all areas of
29 service provision and delivery for people with
30 disabilities; and 
31 WHEREAS, National Disability Employment Awareness
32 Month recognizes that individuals with disabilities are
33 capable, contributing members of society worthy of full
34 access and inclusion in South Carolina’s workforce.
35 NOW, THEREFORE, I, Henry McMaster, Governor of the
36 great State of South Carolina, do hereby proclaim
37 October 2021 as Disability Employment Awareness Month
38 throughout the state and encourage all South
39 Carolinians to work together to advance the message
40 that people with disabilities are equal to the task.
41 Mr. Chairman, I bring this in the form of a motion. 
42 Like I said, this is in conjunction with the governor’s
43 office from the State of South Carolina and Anderson
44 County.
45 TOMMY DUNN:    Thank you, Mr. Wright. 
46 We have a second by Ms. Wilson.  Any discussion?  
47 I’d just like to say they do a great, great service
48 for Anderson County.  I know throughout the state,
49 throughout the country, by helping our employment in
50 our factories and we really do appreciate them and



Anderson County Council - Special Presentation Meeting - October 5, 2021
3

1 appreciate all the ones helping.  Appreciate all the
2 companies that’s involved and willing to give them a
3 shot to have a good job because they earn it.  They do
4 a great job.  And it’s great for the companies getting
5 the good benefit and the citizens of Anderson County
6 throughout the state is also getting benefits from them
7 being able to work.  Anyone else?  Hearing and seeing
8 none, all in favor of the motion show of hands.  All
9 opposed like sign.  
10 Mr. Burns, someone here?  Okay.  Y’all step down
11 there.
12 PRESENTATION OF PROCLAMATION
13 APPLAUSE
14 TOMMY DUNN:    Also at this time I’d
15 like to thank Ms. Gilstrap back there in the back for
16 all what she does for this program and helping out and
17 all she does for Anderson County, period.  But
18 especially for this program and helping out on that
19 right there.  It really means a lot to the county and
20 the citizens.  I know those folks greatly appreciate it
21 and we do, too.  Thank you very much, Ms. Gilstrap.
22 Yes, Ms. Wilson.
23 CINDY WILSON:   May I mention that
24 Walgreens, when they first were built, tapped into the
25 market of employees that are covered by this.
26 TOMMY DUNN:    Yes, they did.
27 CINDY WILSON:   And I think they were a
28 national example.  They were widely praised nationwide.
29 TOMMY DUNN:    They did.
30 CINDY WILSON:   We’re blessed to have
31 them here in the county.
32 TOMMY DUNN:    Yep.  We sure are.  
33 We’re going to be moving on now to item 2(b), 2021-
34 047, a Resolution to honor and recognize the Young
35 Marines Youth Program for its work strengthening youth
36 in Anderson County, and not only the county but across
37 the country.  Councilman Sanders.
38 BRETT SANDERS:   Thank you, Chairman
39 Dunn. 
40 THIS IS A RESOLUTION TO HONOR AND RECOGNIZE THE
41 YOUNG MARINES YOUTH PROGRAM FOR ITS WORK STRENGTHENING
42 YOUTH IN ANDERSON COUNTY AND ACROSS THE COUNTRY.
43 WHEREAS, the Young Marines is a national nonprofit
44 youth program for boys and girls, ages eight through
45 high school, focused on leadership, citizenship through
46 community service, self-discipline, and living a
47 healthy, drug-free lifestyle; and
48 WHEREAS, in 1959, several former Marines in
49 Waterbury, Connecticut organized a group for boys with
50 a goal of mirroring the values of the Marine Corps,



Anderson County Council - Special Presentation Meeting - October 5, 2021
4

1 offering leadership training and other life skills, and
2 this group formed the bedrock of the organization known
3 today as the Young Marines; and
4 WHEREAS, since the Young Marines’ humble beginnings
5 in 1959 with one unit and a handful of boys, the
6 organization has grown to over 235 units with 7,500
7 youth and 2,500 adult volunteers in 40 states, the
8 District of Columbia, Japan, and affiliates in other
9 countries; and
10 WHEREAS, the Young Marines are active in Anderson
11 County and in the State of South Carolina with many
12 dedicated youth participants and adult volunteers.
13 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Anderson
14 County Council hereby expresses its appreciation to the
15 Young Marines for their positive contributions to the
16 lives of youth in Anderson County, and, in so doing,
17 improving the life of our community as a whole.
18 RESOLVED in a meeting duly assembled this 5th day
19 of October, 2021.
20 I’d like to put that in the form of a motion, sir.
21 CINDY WILSON:   Second.
22 TOMMY DUNN:    Have a motion Mr.
23 Sanders; second Ms. Wilson.  Open the floor up for
24 discussion.  I just want to echo Mr. Sanders.  They’ve
25 done a tremendous job for the young people here in the
26 county for many years.  We appreciate what they do and
27 continue to do and strive forward.  And really do
28 appreciate it.  Mr. Sanders.
29 BRETT SANDERS:   I think we’ve got some
30 here if they’d like to come up.
31 TOMMY DUNN:    Yep.  
32 BRETT SANDERS:   We’ve got to vote.
33 TOMMY DUNN:    Anybody else?  All in
34 favor of the motion show of hands.  All opposed like
35 sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously.
36 PRESENTATION OF RESOLUTION
37 APPLAUSE 
38 BRETT SANDERS:   I would like to add, Mr.
39 Chairman, that Mr. Greenlee’s son that we just
40 recognized, Mr. Greenlee works for the county in our IT
41 Department.  Does a great job for us.  We appreciate
42 you, too, sir.
43 TOMMY DUNN:    He does.  Raising a fine
44 young man and going to make a fine citizen.  
45 Hearing and seeing none, this part of our meeting
46 will be closed, and we’ll reconvene back at 6:30 to
47 start our regular council meeting. 
48 Again, thank y’all for coming.
49

(SPECIAL PRESENTATION MEETING ADJOURNED AT 6:15 P.M.)



5

State of South Carolina   )

County  of     Anderson   )

ANDERSON COUNTY COUNCIL
 

COUNTY COUNCIL MEETING

OCTOBER 5, 2021

IN ATTENDANCE:
TOMMY DUNN, CHAIRMAN
RAY GRAHAM
BRETT SANDERS
JOHN WRIGHT
CINDY WILSON
GLENN DAVIS
JIMMY DAVIS

ALSO PRESENT:
RUSTY BURNS
LEON HARMON
JANIE TURMON



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - October 5, 2021
6

1 TOMMY DUNN:    At this time I’d like to
2 call the Anderson County Council October 5th regular
3 council meeting to order.  I’d like to welcome everyone
4 here tonight.  And thank you for coming out in this
5 messy weather and helping to take part in doing
6 business for the citizens of Anderson County.  
7 First of all, we’ll ask for our invocation and
8 pledge of allegiance.  If we’ll all rise for Councilman
9 Sanders.
10 INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE BY BRETT SANDERS
11 TOMMY DUNN:    At this time we’ll move
12 on to item number 3, approval of the minutes of
13 September 21st, 2021.  Are there any corrections to
14 those minutes?  Do we have a motion to accept?
15 CINDY WILSON:   Mr. Chairman, may I make
16 the motion that we accept the minutes of September
17 21st.
18 TOMMY DUNN:    Motion Ms. Wilson.  Do
19 we have a second?
20 BRETT SANDERS:   Second.
21 TOMMY DUNN:    Second Mr. Sanders.  All
22 in favor of the motion show of hands.  All opposed like
23 sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously.
24 We’re going to be moving on now to citizens
25 comments.  When Mr. Harmon calls your name, please, for
26 the record, state your name and district for the
27 record.  Address the chair.  You have three minutes. 
28 It’s on agenda items only this first go-around.  Mr.
29 Harmon.
30 LEON HARMON:   Mr. Chairman, no one
31 signed up tonight.
32 TOMMY DUNN:    Thank you.  We’re going
33 to move on now to item number 5(a), this is ordinance’s
34 third reading, 2021-053, an ordinance to amend
35 Ordinance #99-004, the Anderson County Zoning
36 Ordinance, as adopted July 20, 1999, by amending the
37 Anderson County Official Zoning Map to rezone +/- 15.44
38 acres from to R-20 (Single Family Residential) to R-A
39 (Residential-Agricultural) on a parcel of land
40 identified as 417A Big Woods Cir in Bowling Green
41 Precinct shown in Deed Book 9170 page 00035.  The
42 parcel is further identified as TMS #198-00-05-038.  
43 Do we have a motion to move this forward on third
44 reading?  Ms. Wilson, you make the motion?
45 CINDY WILSON:   Yes, sir. 
46 TOMMY DUNN:    Do we have a second?
47 BRETT SANDERS:   Second.
48 TOMMY DUNN:    Second Mr. Sanders.  Are
49 there any discussion?  Ms. Hunter, do you have anything
50 to add?  All in favor of the motion show of hands.  All



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - October 5, 2021
7

1 opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
2 unanimously.
3 We’re going to move on to item number (b),
4 2021-054, an Ordinance to amend Ordinance #99-004, the
5 Anderson County Zoning Ordinance, as adopted July 20,
6 1999, by amending the Anderson County Official Zoning
7 Map to rezone +/- 8.18 acres from C-2 (Highway
8 Commercial District) to I-2 (Industrial Park District)
9 on a parcel of land identified as 4610 Liberty Hwy,
10 Anderson, in the Five Forks Precinct shown in Deed Book
11 15407 page 00244.  The parcel is further identified as
12 TMS #92-00-06-016.  Do we have a motion to move this
13 forward on third reading?
14 CINDY WILSON:   So moved.
15 TOMMY DUNN:    Motion Ms. Wilson.  Do
16 we  have a second?
17 BRETT SANDERS:   Second.
18 TOMMY DUNN:    Second Mr. Sanders.  Any
19 discussion?  Ms. Hunter, do you have anything?  Hearing
20 none, all in favor of the motion show of hands.  All
21 opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
22 unanimously.
23 We’re going to move on to item number (c), be
24 2021-055.  I believe Mr. Sanders is recusing himself
25 from this.  Councilman.
26 BRETT SANDERS:   Yes, sir. 
27 TOMMY DUNN:    Moving on to item number
28 5(c), 2021-055, an Ordinance to amend Ordinance
29 #99-004, the Anderson County Zoning Ordinance, as
30 adopted July 20, 1999, by amending the Anderson County
31 Official Zoning Map to rezone +/- 48.56 acres from C-2
32 (Commercial District) & I-1 (Industrial District) to
33 IZD (Innovative Zoning District) on three parcels of
34 land on Welpine Road in Denver-Sandy Springs Precinct
35 shown in Deed Book 12169 page 238, Deed Book 11541 page
36 243 & Deed Book 12932 page 241.  The parcels are
37 further identified as TMS#93-00-03-002,
38 TMS#92-00-08-006 & TMS #92-03-01-018.
39 This is third reading.  Do we have a motion to move
40 this forward?
41 BRETT SANDERS:   So moved.
42 TOMMY DUNN:    Motion Mr. Davis.
43 CINDY WILSON:   Second.
44 TOMMY DUNN:    Second by Ms. Wilson. 
45 Is that right?  Any discussion?  Seeing and hearing
46 none, all in favor of the motion show of hands.  All
47 opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously
48 with Mr. Sanders recusing himself.  
49 Mr. Davis, will you bring him back in.
50 We’re going to move on to item number 5(d),



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - October 5, 2021
8

1 2021-056, an Ordinance to amend section 2-37 of the
2 code of ordinances, Anderson county, South Carolina, so
3 as to allow Anderson County council members to
4 participate in meetings from remote locations by
5 electronic means; and other matters related thereto.
6 This will be a public hearing.  Anyone wishing to
7 speak to this matter, please step forward and state
8 your name and district for the record and address the
9 chair, please.  You’ve got three minutes.  Anyone at
10 all?  Seeing and hearing none, the public hearing will
11 be closed.  Do we have a motion to move this forward?
12 JIMMY DAVIS:   So moved.
13 TOMMY DUNN:    Motion Mr. Davis; second
14 Ms. Wilson.  Any discussion?  I’m just going to say,
15 this is coming -- probably long overdue with today’s
16 technology, brought on partly by COVID.  If somebody
17 can’t make the meeting or what you call it, we can
18 still have it.  And this also works in all our
19 meetings, our committee meetings, where we can have it
20 especially some of us, like Mr. Davis, not picking on
21 him, but won’t have to come all the way to Anderson. 
22 He can conduct his meeting and still be part of it. 
23 Anyone else?  Have a motion.  Show of hands.  Like
24 sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously.
25 Moving on to item number (e), 2021-052, an
26 ordinance authorizing a fee-in-lieu-of-tax arrangement
27 on behalf of Glen Raven Custom Fabrics, LLC
28 (the “Company”) pursuant to a fee-in-lieu-of-tax
29 agreement between Anderson county, South Carolina (the
30 “county”) and the company; authorizing a 5-year
31 extension of the investment period for all investments
32 over the minimum investment requirement; authorizing
33 the granting of certain infrastructure credits to the
34 company; authorizing the creation of a joint county
35 industrial and business park with Greenville County;
36 and other matters relating to the foregoing.
37 This will be a public hearing.  Anyone wishing to
38 speak to this matter, please step forward and state
39 your name and district for the record and address the
40 chair, please.  Anyone at all?  Seeing and hearing
41 none, the public hearing will be closed.  Do we have a
42 motion to move this forward?
43 BRETT SANDERS:   So moved.
44 CINDY WILSON:   So moved.
45 TOMMY DUNN:    Motion Mr. Sanders;
46 second Mr. Graham.  Mr. Nelson, you got anything you
47 want to add?
48 BURRISS NELSON:   The only thing is, is
49 that we had been working with fifty million dollars and
50 they announced seventy million dollars.  They’ve added



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - October 5, 2021
9

1 twenty million dollars to the Cap X, which is a great
2 surprise for us.  If you’ll look in the packet, I show
3 the increase in property tax income, as well as the
4 community impact.  But it’s several million dollars
5 more into the tax coffers over the thirty-year period. 
6 Thank you, sir, and I appreciate your support.
7 TOMMY DUNN:    That’s great.  It really
8 is.
9 CINDY WILSON:   May I make a comment?
10 TOMMY DUNN:    Yes, Ms. Wilson.
11 CINDY WILSON:   The Sunbrella fabric is
12 renowned worldwide.  It’s in all the Architectural
13 Digests and all of the interior design magazines. 
14 Everybody covets it.  And it’s really nice to have that
15 company here in our county continuing the long textile
16 heritage that we have here.  Thank you.
17 TOMMY DUNN:    Yes, ma’am.  They’ve
18 come a long way.
19 BURRISS NELSON:   Mr. Chairman, if anyone
20 -- I left announcements from the press release that we
21 had on Friday.  They’re on the foyer right here in the
22 front.
23 TOMMY DUNN:    We appreciate it, if
24 anybody would like one.  Anyone else have anything?  We
25 didn’t vote on that; did we?  All in favor of the
26 motion show of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the
27 motion carries unanimously.
28 We’re going to move on now to item number 6, second
29 readings.  There are none.
30 We’re going to move on to item number 7(a), first
31 readings.  First one is 2021-057, an Ordinance to amend
32 Ordinance #99-004, the Anderson County Zoning
33 Ordinance, as adopted July 20, 1999, by amending the
34 Anderson County Official Zoning Map to rezone +/- 20.5
35 acres from C-2 (Highway Commercial District) to I-2
36 (Industrial Park District) on a parcel of land,
37 identified as Highway 81 North & Evergreen Rd in the
38 North Pointe Precinct shown in Deed Book 4293 page 163.
39 The parcel is further identified as TMS #144-00-04-008.
40 Do we have a motion to move this forward?
41 BRETT SANDERS:   So moved.
42 CINDY WILSON:   Second.
43 TOMMY DUNN:    Motion Mr. Sanders;
44 second Ms. Wilson.  Now discussion.  Any discussion? 
45 Ms. Hunter, do you have anything to add?  You good? 
46 All in favor of the motion show of hands.  All opposed
47 like sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously.
48 We’re going to move on to item number 7(b),
49 2021-058, an Ordinance to amend Ordinance #99-004, the
50 Anderson County Zoning Ordinance, as adopted July 20,



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - October 5, 2021
10

1 1999, by amending the Anderson County Official Zoning
2 Map to rezone +/- 16.22 acres from C-2 (Highway
3 Commercial District) & R-15 (Single Family Residential)
4 to R-M (Multifamily Residential) on a parcel of land,
5 identified as Royal American Rd and Driftwood Way, in
6 the Denver-Sandy Springs Precinct shown in Deed Book
7 2462 page 186.  The parcel is further identified as TMS
8 #93-02-02-060, TMS #99-02-02-062 (verbatim), and TMS
9 #93-02-02-063.  
10 Do we have a motion to move this forward?
11 BRETT SANDERS:   So moved.
12 CINDY WILSON:   Second.
13 TOMMY DUNN:    Motion Mr. Sanders; and
14 second by Ms. Wilson.  Any discussion?
15 BRETT SANDERS:   Mr. Chairman?
16 TOMMY DUNN:    Yes, sir. 
17 BRETT SANDERS:   I don’t know if it
18 matters on the record, but on the second TMS number you
19 said 99 and it should be 93-02 ...
20 TOMMY DUNN:    It does matter.  That
21 was on the second one?  The second one should be as Mr.
22 Sanders said, it should be 93-02-02-062.  Is that
23 right?
24 BRETT SANDERS:   Correct.
25 TOMMY DUNN:    Okay.  Thank you. 
26 Anyone else?  Ms. Hunter, you have anything?  No phone
27 calls?  Any input from citizens or anything?
28 ALESIA HUNTER:  No, sir, we had no
29 opposition.
30 TOMMY DUNN:    And this is, for
31 clarification, this ---
32 ALESIA HUNTER:   For clarification.
33 TOMMY DUNN:    This is District 5
34 instead of District 4?
35 ALESIA HUNTER:   Yes, sir. 
36 TOMMY DUNN:    Any more?  If you get
37 any complaints or anything, it’s District 4.  You send
38 them to Mr. Sanders.
39 BRETT SANDERS:   I’ll be glad to do them,
40 sir.
41 TOMMY DUNN:    His district is enough
42 already trying to straighten his mess out.  All in
43 favor of the motion show of hands.  Opposed like sign. 
44 Show the motion carries unanimously.
45 Moving on to item number 7(c), 2021-060, an
46 Ordinance to amend the 2010 joint county industrial and
47 business park agreement with Greenville County, South
48 Carolina so as to enlarge the park, and other matters
49 relating thereto.  Do we have a motion to move this
50 forward?



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - October 5, 2021
11

1 CINDY WILSON:   So moved.
2 BRETT SANDERS:   So moved.
3 TOMMY DUNN:    Motion Mr. Sanders; and
4 second by Ms. Wilson.  I open the floor up for
5 discussion.  Mr. Nelson.
6 BURRISS NELSON:   Thank you, Mr. Chairman,
7 members of council.  Like we’ve just passed -- council
8 passed just a few weeks ago, Greenville County has
9 multiple sites that are coming into the park agreement
10 for several projects that they have working.  They’ll
11 have access -- we’ll have access to those TMS numbers
12 at second reading.  But this comes as -- these sites
13 are being added to allow them to access certain
14 benefits available through South Carolina economic
15 development incentive programs.  And of course, this is
16 an agreement between the county and Greenville County,
17 and we have a reciprocal agreement that we can do the
18 same with Greenville.  They send their thanks for
19 giving consideration to this project -- these projects.
20 TOMMY DUNN:    Anyone else have any
21 discussion or questions, comments?  All in favor of the
22 motion show of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the
23 motion carries unanimously.  
24 We’re going to move on now to item number 7(d),
25 2021-061, an Ordinance authorizing the execution and
26 delivery of a fee in lieu of tax agreement by and
27 between Anderson County, South Carolina and a company
28 known to the county at this time as Project Equinox
29 with respect to certain economic development property
30 in the county, whereby such property will be subject to
31 certain payments in lieu of taxes, including the
32 provision of certain special source credits; and other
33 matters related thereto.  This is in title only
34 tonight.  It’s first reading.  Do we have a motion to
35 put this on the floor?
36 BRETT SANDERS:   So moved.
37 CINDY WILSON:   Second.
38 TOMMY DUNN:    Motion Mr. Sanders and
39 second by Ms. Wilson.  We open the floor for
40 discussion.  Now, Mr. Burriss.
41 BURRISS NELSON:   Mr. Chairman, I
42 appreciate it.  Thank you for the opportunity, but I
43 defer to Mr. Burns to give an explanation on this
44 project.
45 RUSTY BURNS:   Mr. Chairman, this is
46 property the county purchased, the old Equinox Mill. 
47 We you know right now it’s nothing but an area filled
48 with old brick and rubble.
49 TOMMY DUNN:    That’s where Glen Raven
50 used to -- before they moved.



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - October 5, 2021
12

1 RUSTY BURNS:   Yes, sir.  And the
2 county purchased that property sometime ago.  We
3 recently put out a request for proposal for somebody to
4 do the development.  M3 is the company that put in --
5 the only people to come in, and we’ve selected them to
6 move forward on this process.  They’re going to pay us
7 fair market value for the land.  So the county will
8 make our investment and more back.  They will be
9 responsible for all clean-up.  It will be a mixture of
10 apartments, town homes, parks and other amenities.  It
11 won’t all happen at one time.  It will be in phases. 
12 But in the agreement we’re going to put time lines they
13 have to hit certain marks or it will revert back to us.
14 TOMMY DUNN:    And I believe this
15 company has got a pretty good track record of doing
16 this sort of projects?
17 RUSTY BURNS:  Yes, sir, the one they
18 probably get the most attention is the redevelopment of
19 the old Newry Mill.  And they’re doing a fantastic job
20 up there.
21 TOMMY DUNN:    And this is just going
22 to be great for that area of town for our county.
23 RUSTY BURNS:   Yes, sir. 
24 TOMMY DUNN:    A lot of people traveled
25 Jackson Street, and to clean that up, it’s been a long
26 time coming.  Appreciate this thing.  And I think it’s
27 going to be a great addition and I think there will be
28 some more of these happening.  Anyone else?  All in
29 favor of the motion show of hands.  All opposed like
30 sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously.
31 Moving on to item 8, resolutions, there are none.
32 Moving to number 9, bid approvals.  Who wants to
33 handle this?
34 RUSTY BURNS:  Mr. Chairman, we have two
35 items on there that are for the Starr C & D Landfill. 
36 That is a part of our capital program.  It has been
37 done by the Finance Committee.  We have a price of six
38 hundred sixty-five thousand eight hundred sixteen
39 dollars and ninety-four cents. 
40 TOMMY DUNN:  I guess -- we have a
41 motion to move this forward for discussion?
42 CINDY WILSON:  So moved.
43 TOMMY DUNN:  Motion Mr. Davis; second
44 Ms. Wilson.  Now discussion.  Just for the record, I’m
45 assuming this was the low bid and there were other
46 bids?
47 BRETT SANDERS:  They are selling the old
48 one.
49 RUSTY BURNS:  Yes, sir.  Except for the
50 part we’re going to keep; the ripper.



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - October 5, 2021
13

1 TOMMY DUNN:  Any more discussion,
2 questions, comments?  All in favor of the motion show
3 of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the motion
4 carries unanimously.
5 Now we’ll be moving on to item number 9(b).
6 RUSTY BURNS:  Mr. Chairman, the other
7 item came before the Public Safety Committee.  The
8 Public Safety Committee requested some additional items
9 to be added to this, a pumper and several other things
10 that this reflects the price, one hundred eighty-seven
11 thousand five hundred seventy-four dollars.  It will
12 take some time to build this.  It’s a custom-built
13 boat.  And that’s where we are right there.
14 TOMMY DUNN:  Do we have a motion to
15 put this on the floor for discussion?
16 RAY GRAHAM:  Motion.
17 TOMMY DUNN:  Motion Mr. Graham.
18 CINDY WILSON:  Second.
19 TOMMY DUNN:  Second by Ms. Wilson. 
20 Now discussion.
21 RAY GRAHAM:  Mr. Chairman.
22 TOMMY DUNN:  Let me go with Ray first,
23 excuse me, Mr. Graham, he is Chairman of Public Safety.
24 RAY GRAHAM:  I just want to commend
25 Robert and Stone and Ross for going back and making
26 these changes.  It basically makes this unit more
27 versatile and gives us more use.  As we know, we’ve got
28 a gem here in Anderson County with Hartwell Lake.  The
29 primary focus of this boat is to replace the dive boat
30 for the dive team that the county operates.  However,
31 putting this pumper on, it also gives us some water
32 resources as far as fire response on our many tax
33 properties throughout the shores of Hartwell Lake.  It
34 definitely gives us some other useful benefits with
35 that.  And really, when you look at overall cost, it
36 was a very minor adjustment on price.  And so it’s just
37 -- it made more sense to do that.  So definitely
38 commend our county employees for going back and getting
39 that stuff added.
40 TOMMY DUNN:  Mr. Davis.
41 JIMMY DAVIS:  That was all I wanted,
42 was to make sure we had a clarification on the record
43 of what we voted on.
44 TOMMY DUNN:  Yes, sir.  This boat, Mr.
45 Chairman, for the citizens out there and things, this
46 will primarily be used by the sheriff’s office in their
47 dive team.
48 RAY GRAHAM:  Correct, Mr. Chairman. 
49 Stone, who is over our fleet services, anything from
50 vehicles, tractors, bulldozers, including boats, he has



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - October 5, 2021
14

1 done just an amazing job managing his department.  And
2 basically instead of waiting till something truly wears
3 out and the value is almost nothing as far as
4 replacement, he’s basically got it in a system.  This
5 boat was coming up to be replaced this year.  It’s an
6 old flat bottom dive boat that we used when I was on
7 the sheriff’s department on the dive team.  And it’s
8 basically -- it’s ran out of its life expectancy.  And
9 it just makes more sense to invest in a new boat,
10 modern technology and different things that’s going to
11 allow the dive team to be more resourceful in the event
12 of an emergency.  So that is the primary use.  
13 We had an option of adding the pumper on which
14 gives us another use as far as fire response, as well. 
15 It’s not going to be like a fire truck that’s going to
16 respond on every fire.  But I mean it is available in
17 the case that it’s needed.  So it just gives us some
18 better opportunities.  
19 And that’s actually, I guess lack of better terms,
20 almost a skid unit.  It can be placed on a boat or
21 removed.  So I mean it’s a real quick response to add
22 that or take it off in the event it’s needed.  That’s
23 kind of ---
24 TOMMY DUNN:  And this -- also, Mr.
25 Chairman, if I’m wrong in talking -- when this come up
26 before your committee before on this, this will be, for
27 better lack of term, I guess, more user friendly as far
28 as the dive team and what not.
29 RAY GRAHAM:  Absolutely.  The old boat
30 was -- I mean it’s a heavy flat bottom boat.  It’s
31 absolutely a pain in the butt getting in and out of
32 when you’re dressed out in dive gear.  It just -- it
33 did not truly serve -- it served the needs because it’s
34 what we had.  They’ve just got better technology this
35 day and time that allows better opportunities on that. 
36 Makes it safer for our guys going in and out of the
37 water.  I mean it’s just a lot better use.  I’m
38 definitely glad to see this taking place.
39 TOMMY DUNN:  Mr. Chairman, any idea
40 when they placed the order how long; six months, three
41 months, did they give you any kind of ---
42 RAY GRAHAM:  It’s custom built.  I’d
43 expect probably six months, as far as on the return on
44 this.
45 TOMMY DUNN:  I appreciate all your
46 committee’s work, Mr. Stone’s work, and the sheriff
47 department’s work on this.  I think it’ll be a big
48 asset to the citizens of Anderson County.  Anyone have
49 anything else?  All in favor of the motion show of
50 hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - October 5, 2021
15

1 unanimously.
2 We’re going to move on now to appointments.  Are
3 there any appointments that I’m not aware of?  Do we
4 have any?  Any appointments?
5 Moving on now to item number 11, requests by
6 council members.  Mr. Davis?
7 JIMMY DAVIS:  None, sir.
8 TOMMY DUNN:  Mr. Sanders?
9 BRETT SANDERS:  Yes, sir.  Thank you, Mr.
10 Chairman.  I would like to take one thousand from my
11 special rec fund to be donated to Angel’s Elite
12 Modeling Troupe.  Put that in the form of a motion,
13 sir.
14 TOMMY DUNN:  Thank you.  We have a
15 second from Ms. Wilson.  Any discussion?  All in favor
16 of the motion show of hands.  All opposed like sign. 
17 Show the motion carries unanimously.
18 Mr. Davis?
19 GLENN DAVIS:  No, sir.
20 TOMMY DUNN:  Mr. Graham?
21 RAY GRAHAM:  I’d like to do -- make
22 this in the form of a motion, do five hundred dollars
23 to Angel’s Elite Modeling Troupe, as well.
24 CINDY WILSON:  Second.
25 TOMMY DUNN:  Second by Ms. Wilson. 
26 Now, any discussion?  All in favor of the motion show
27 of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the motion
28 carries unanimously. 
29 Mr. Wright.
30 JOHN WRIGHT:  Yes, sir, Mr. Chairman. 
31 I would like to appropriate twenty-five hundred dollars
32 from District 1's special rec account for Angel’s Elite
33 Modeling Troupe.  I bring that in the form of a motion.
34 CINDY WILSON:  Second.
35 TOMMY DUNN:  Have a motion by Mr.
36 Wright and second by Ms. Wilson.  Any discussion?  All
37 in favor of the motion show of hands.  
38 Ms. Wilson, anything?
39 CINDY WILSON:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
40 Didn’t we recognize this young lady a few years ago?
41 TOMMY DUNN:  I think so.
42 CINDY WILSON:  I thought you looked
43 familiar.  District 7 would appropriate five hundred,
44 and wish we had more to do, but we’ve been running
45 through the money lately.  Put that into the form of a
46 motion.
47 TOMMY DUNN:  We have a motion by Ms.
48 Wilson; second Mr. Wright.  Any discussion?  All in
49 favor of the motion show of hands.  All opposed like
50 sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously.



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - October 5, 2021
16

1 District 5, out of its special appropriation
2 account would also like to appropriate five hundred
3 dollars.  I’d love to do a thousand, but as Ms. Wilson,
4 my account got hit by the Homeland Park Fire Station
5 down there, so I’m running low to get through the year. 
6 But I do appreciate it.  If I can come back, we’ll give
7 more at a later time.  I think it’s a -- I put that in
8 the form of a motion.  Do we have a second?
9 CINDY WILSON:  Second.
10 JOHN WRIGHT:  Second.
11 TOMMY DUNN:  Second Mr. Wright.  Any
12 discussion?  I’d just like to say, I think this
13 program, from everything I’m hearing, does a great job
14 for our people and really appreciate what all y’all do. 
15 Okay?  Any more discussion?  All in favor of the motion
16 show of hands.  Show the motion carries unanimously.  
17 And I just want to say, too, where people won’t get
18 the wrong idea or something another, just for our
19 appearances, Mr. Davis, Mr. Glenn Davis, didn’t want to
20 do this because his niece is part of this program. 
21 That’s the reason he didn’t.  He fully supports you.  I
22 don’t want to put words in his mouth, but that’s the
23 reason, just for appearances, he just wants to be on
24 the up-and-up.
25 GLENN DAVIS:  Yes, sir.
26 TOMMY DUNN:  Thank y’all. 
27 Moving on to administrator’s report.
28 RUSTY BURNS:  Nothing at this time.
29 TOMMY DUNN:  At this time we’re going
30 to have citizens comments.  When Mr. Harmon calls your
31 name, you’ve got three minutes.  Please address the
32 chair.  And please state your name and district for the
33 record.  Mr. Harmon.
34 LEON HARMON:  Mr. Chairman, no one is
35 signed up.
36 TOMMY DUNN:  Thank you, Mr. Harmon.
37 Now we’re going to have remarks from council
38 members.  Mr. Davis, that’s Jimmy Davis.
39 JIMMY DAVIS:  (Inaudible.)
40 TOMMY DUNN:  Mr. Brett Sanders.
41 BRETT SANDERS:  Yes, sir, thank you.  I
42 would like to thank Mr. Graham on the boat because we
43 have Mr. Brissey out there on that jet ski, he’s liable
44 to run into someone and start a fire, so at least they
45 can put it out now.  
46 No, I have nothing.  Thank you.
47 TOMMY DUNN:  Thank you, Mr. Sanders.  
48 Mr. Glenn Davis.
49 GLENN DAVIS:  I have nothing.
50 TOMMY DUNN:  Thank you, Mr. Davis. 



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - October 5, 2021
17

1 Mr. Graham.
2 RAY GRAHAM:  I have nothing, Mr.
3 Chairman.  Thank you.
4 TOMMY DUNN:  Thank you.  
5 Mr. Wright.
6 JOHN WRIGHT:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
7 I just to echo the comments made.  I’ve had an
8 opportunity to be with Ms. Wheeler and see what her
9 program is all about.  It really is an incredible
10 opportunity that mentors young people and teaches them
11 confidence.  Appreciate everything that you’re doing
12 for the next generation.  It means a lot.
13 Also, Mr. Chairman, I just want to make mention --
14 I mentioned it at the last meeting, but this will be
15 the last one we have before our law enforcement
16 appreciation barbeque on October 16th.  That’s being
17 done in conjunction with city council, District 1
18 member, Cal Newton, and myself.  All the proceeds are
19 going to be split fifty/fifty between the Anderson
20 County Sheriff’s Foundation and the Anderson City
21 Police Department Foundation.
22 TOMMY DUNN:  I think we ought to get
23 sixty/forty out of that.
24 JOHN WRIGHT:  I tried, I tried.  But
25 anyway, I just want to make mention of that.  We’d be
26 happy to host any council members.  I think Mr. Sanders
27 has sponsored a table for any council members that want
28 to be able to attend that barbeque that day.  It’s
29 October 16th, eleven till two, at the Civic Center.  If
30 the weather is like it is today, we’ve got a rain plan
31 to go inside.  So thank you.
32 TOMMY DUNN:  Great.  Appreciate it.
33 JOHN WRIGHT:  Yes, sir.
34 TOMMY DUNN:  Ms. Wilson.
35 CINDY WILSON:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
36 Last week we had an awesome announcement over in
37 Pelzer.  And I just want to thank Mr. Burns and Mr.
38 Harmon and, of course, Mr. Newton, and all the good
39 folks that have worked so hard over there.  The little
40 village of Pelzer is coming back to life.  It’s just
41 incredible what will be taking place over there in the
42 next year or two.
43 And of course, our airport terminal opening was
44 awesome, too.  That was really exciting.
45 We’ve had some really, really cool things
46 happening.  And I wanted to invite Ms. Wheeler to come
47 take a look at the Pelzer, West Pelzer, Williamston,
48 Honea Path areas.  I bet you’ll find some wonderful
49 young people who would benefit from your skills in
50 helping them.  Thank you.



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - October 5, 2021
18

1 TOMMY DUNN:  Thank you, Ms. Wilson.
2 I’d just like to say, to start off with, if it’s
3 appropriate, Mr. Sanders, do you want to announce about
4 the airport, what happened between you and -- you do
5 it.  You and our Airport Manager worked very hard on
6 this and made this accomplishment.  I think it’s
7 something very good for the county, but it’s also a
8 building block.  I think it’s just only going to get
9 better.
10 BRETT SANDERS:  Yes, sir.  A gentleman I
11 had talked to in the past and talked with our Airport
12 Manager, Mr. Garrison, he has reached out to Mr.
13 Garrison and leased office space at the airport and is
14 going to provide a charter service out there, which
15 hasn’t been -- I don’t know how many -- it’s been a lot
16 of years.  And he’s a fine young man.  Great equipment,
17 a Beechcraft Baron.  So please if you want to go on a
18 trip, reach out to them.  I think it’s a great building
19 block to where we can move forward in the future and
20 have more people participating in general aviation,
21 especially some of our industries around here.  I was
22 excited about that and I really appreciate the work of
23 our Airport Manager, Mr. Garrison.  I think he’s done a
24 tremendous job.
25 TOMMY DUNN:  Mr. Burns, if you would,
26 and I know you will, we need to get this up on our
27 webpage.  And also get somebody to do a story on our TV
28 station about this.
29 RUSTY BURNS:  We will be having the air
30 show video up probably on Friday, and we’re already
31 announcing Clemson Charter Service on there.  We’re
32 sending it to all industries in Anderson County.  We
33 put that in motion with Ms. Terry Gilstrap today, and
34 we will do all those things, Mr. Chairman.
35 TOMMY DUNN:  Thank you.  And I want to
36 echo Ms. Wilson’s comments, too, about the grand
37 opening or the ribbon cutting, whatever you want to
38 call it, at the airport terminal this past weekend.  I
39 thought it was very nice.  Good crowd there to see it
40 and a lot of good comments about our terminal.  And
41 really appreciate -- for the record, there were several
42 people from the Aviation Board of the state of South
43 Carolina that flew up and come to this thing from the
44 lower -- one of them from the lower part of the state
45 or the Peedee Region.  That showed a -- really touched
46 me a little bit for somebody to come and show enough
47 interest to come up here for this right here.  It was
48 good.
49 BRETT SANDERS:  They did say, one of them
50 said that our airport was one of the best ones out of



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - October 5, 2021
19

1 all the airports that he deals with.  And the only one
2 that -- the other one that was close was the one that
3 (inaudible).  I thought that was exciting to hear.
4 TOMMY DUNN:  And just want to keep in
5 mind -- I’m sure we’ll all be getting phone calls.  I
6 want to appreciate our fine county employees.  It was
7 said numerous times today -- I know Chairman Graham
8 said it numerous times and I think the whole council
9 wholeheartedly believes our best assets for the council
10 is our employees.  We’re all a team and family.  And I
11 always tell people about economic development, our best
12 asset to sell is the citizens of Anderson County.  We
13 keep our employees and let them know we appreciate them
14 and thank them.  
15 Also, let’s keep in mind with all this rain they’re
16 going to really be getting phone calls about drainage
17 problems.
18 Appreciate everybody.  Thank y’all for coming.
19
20 (MEETING ADJOURNED AT APPROXIMATELY 7:02 P.M.)



Ordinance #2021-057 
Page 1 of 3 

Highway 81 N & Evergreen Rd 

 
Ordinance #2021-057 

 
An Ordinance to amend Ordinance #99-004, the Anderson County Zoning 

Ordinance, as adopted July 20, 1999, by amending the Anderson County 

Official Zoning Map to rezone +/- 20.5 acres from C-2 (Highway Commercial 

District) to I-2 (Industrial Park District) on a parcel of land, identified as 

Highway 81 North & Evergreen Rd in the North Pointe Precinct shown in Deed 

Book 4293 page 163. The parcel is further identified as TMS #144-00-04-008. 

 
Whereas, Anderson County, a body politic and corporate and a political subdivision 

of the State of South Carolina (the “County”), acting by and through its County 

Council (the “County Council”) has previously adopted Anderson County 
Ordinance #99-004, the Anderson County Zoning Ordinance (the “Ordinance”), 

which Ordinance contains the Anderson County Official Zoning Map (the “Map”); 
and, 

 
Whereas, the Ordinance contains provisions providing for the amendment of the 

Map; and, 
 

Whereas, County Council desires to amend the Map by adopting a zoning map 

amendment from C-2 to I-2 for +/- 20.5 acres of TMS #144-00-04-008 described 

above; and, 
 

Whereas, the Anderson County Planning Commission has held a duly advertised 

Public Hearing on September 14, 2021, during which it reviewed the proposed 
rezoning from to C-2 to I-2 +/- 20.5 acres of TMS #144-00-04-008 described above; 

and, 
 
Whereas, the Anderson County Council has duly advertised and held a Public 

Hearing on October 19, 2021, regarding said amendment of the Anderson County 
Official Zoning Map:  

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

 

  



Ordinance #2021-057 
Page 2 of 3 

Highway 81 N & Evergreen Rd 

 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by Anderson County Council, in meeting duly 

assembled, that: 

 
 

1. The Anderson County Council hereby finds that this proposed rezoning is 

consistent with the Anderson County Comprehensive Plan and in accord 
with requirements of the South Carolina Code of Laws Title 6, Chapter 29, 

Article 5. 
 

2. The Anderson County Council hereby amends the Anderson County 

Official Zoning Map as previously adopted July 20, 1999, by Anderson 
County Ordinance #99-004 to rezone from C-2 to I-2 +/- 20.5 acres of 

TMS #144-00-04-008 described above.         
 

3. Should any portion of this Ordinance be deemed unconstitutional or 
otherwise unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such 
determination shall not affect the remaining terms and provisions of this 

ordinance, all of which  are hereby deemed separable. 
 

4. All orders, resolutions, and enactments of Anderson County Council 
inconsistent herewith are, to the extent of such inconsistency only, hereby 

repealed, revoked, and rescinded. 
 

5. This ordinance shall take effect and be in full force and effect from and 

after third reading and enactment by Anderson County Council.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Ordinance #2021-057 
Page 3 of 3 

Highway 81 N & Evergreen Rd 

 
ATTEST:  Ordinance 2021-057 

 
 

 
_____________________________         __________________________________   

Rusty Burns     Tommy Dunn, District #5, Chairman 
Anderson County Administrator 
 

 
 

_____________________________    
Janie L. Turmon       
Assistant Clerk to Council 

              
   

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

        

 
 
     

Anderson County Attorney  
     

 
1st Reading:     October 5, 2021 
 

2nd Reading:  October 19, 2021 
 

3rd Reading:   November 2, 2021 
 

Public Hearing: October 19, 2021 
 
 

 
 



Ordinance #2021-058 
Page 1 of 3 

Royal American Rd & Driftwood Way 

 
Ordinance #2021-058 

 
An Ordinance to amend Ordinance #99-004, the Anderson County Zoning 

Ordinance, as adopted July 20, 1999, by amending the Anderson County 

Official Zoning Map to rezone +/- 16.22 acres from C-2 (Highway Commercial 

District) & R-15 (Single Family Residential) to R-M (Multifamily Residential) on 

a parcel of land, identified as Royal American Rd and Driftwood Way, in the 

Denver-Sandy Springs Precinct shown in Deed Book 2462 page 186. The 

parcel is further identified as TMS #93-02-02-060, TMS #93-02-02-062, and TMS 

#93-02-02-063. 

 
Whereas, Anderson County, a body politic and corporate and a political subdivision 

of the State of South Carolina (the “County”), acting by and through its County 
Council (the “County Council”) has previously adopted Anderson County 

Ordinance #99-004, the Anderson County Zoning Ordinance (the “Ordinance”), 
which Ordinance contains the Anderson County Official Zoning Map (the “Map”); 

and, 

 
Whereas, the Ordinance contains provisions providing for the amendment of the 

Map; and, 
 
Whereas, County Council desires to amend the Map by adopting a zoning map 

amendment from C-2 & R-15 to R-M for +/- 16.22 acres of TMS #93-02-02-060, TMS 
#93-02-02-062, and TMS #93-02-02-063 described above; and, 

 

Whereas, the Anderson County Planning Commission has held a duly advertised 

Public Hearing on September 14, 2021, during which it reviewed the proposed 

rezoning from to C-2 & R-15 to R-M +/- 16.22 acres of TMS #93-02-02-060, TMS #93-
02-02-062, and TMS #93-02-02-063 described above; and, 

 
Whereas, the Anderson County Council has duly advertised and held a Public 

Hearing on October 19, 2021, regarding said amendment of the Anderson County 

Official Zoning Map:  
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

 

  



Ordinance #2021-058 
Page 2 of 3 

Royal American Rd & Driftwood Way 

 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by Anderson County Council, in meeting duly 

assembled, that: 

 
 

1. The Anderson County Council hereby finds that this proposed rezoning is 

consistent with the Anderson County Comprehensive Plan and in accord 
with requirements of the South Carolina Code of Laws Title 6, Chapter 29, 

Article 5. 
 

2. The Anderson County Council hereby amends the Anderson County 

Official Zoning Map as previously adopted July 20, 1999, by Anderson 
County Ordinance #99-004 to rezone from C-2 & R-15 to R-M +/- 16.22 

acres of TMS #93-02-02-060, TMS #93-02-02-062, and TMS #93-02-02-
063 described above.         

 

3. Should any portion of this Ordinance be deemed unconstitutional or 
otherwise unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such 
determination shall not affect the remaining terms and provisions of this 

ordinance, all of which  are hereby deemed separable. 
 

4. All orders, resolutions, and enactments of Anderson County Council 
inconsistent herewith are, to the extent of such inconsistency only, hereby 

repealed, revoked, and rescinded. 
 

5. This ordinance shall take effect and be in full force and effect from and 

after third reading and enactment by Anderson County Council.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance #2021-058 
Page 3 of 3 

Royal American Rd & Driftwood Way 

 
 

ATTEST:  Ordinance 2021-058 
 
 

 
_____________________________         __________________________________   

Rusty Burns     Tommy Dunn, District #5, Chairman 
Anderson County Administrator 

 
 
 

_____________________________    
Janie L. Turmon       

Assistant Clerk to Council 
              
   

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

        

 
 

     
Anderson County Attorney  
     

 
1st Reading:     October 5, 2021 

 
2nd Reading:  October 19, 2021 
 

3rd Reading:   November 2, 2021 
 

Public Hearing: October 19, 2021 
 

 
 
 



A-1 

ORDINANCE NO. 2021-060 

 

 AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND AN AGREEMENT FOR THE DEVELOPMENT OF 

A JOINT COUNTY INDUSTRIAL AND BUSINESS PARK (2010 PARK) OF 

ANDERSON AND GREENVILLE COUNTIES SO AS TO ENLARGE THE PARK. 

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance No. 2010-026 enacted October 19, 2010 by Anderson County 

Council, Anderson County entered into an Agreement for the Development of a Joint County Industrial and 

Business Park (2010 Park) dated as of December 1, 2010, as amended, with Greenville County (the 

“Agreement”); and 

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 3(A) of the Agreement, the boundaries of the park created therein 

(the “Park”) may be enlarged pursuant to ordinances of the County Councils of Anderson County and 

Greenville County; and 

 

 WHEREAS, in connection with certain incentives being offered by Greenville County to Project 

Storybook, it is now desired that the boundaries of the Park be enlarged to include certain parcels in 

Greenville County;  

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by Anderson County Council that Exhibit A to the 

Agreement is hereby and shall be amended and revised to include property located in Greenville County 

described in the schedule attached to this Ordinance, and, pursuant to Section 3(B) of the Agreement, upon 

adoption by Greenville County of a corresponding ordinance, the Agreement shall be deemed amended to so 

include such property and Exhibit A as so revised, without further action by either county. 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

[SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE] 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



A-2 

 

DONE in meeting duly assembled this ____ day of_______________, 20__.  

 

 

 ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

(SEAL) By:________________________________________ 

  Chairman, Anderson County Council 

 

Attest: 

By:_______________________________ 

 Anderson County Administrator 

 

 

By:_______________________________ 

 Clerk to Anderson County Council 

 

Approved as to Form 

 

__________________________________ 

Leon C. Harmon, County Attorney 

 

First Reading: October 5, 2021  

Second Reading: October 19, 2021 

Third Reading: November 2, 2021  

Public Hearing: October 19, 2021  

 



A-3 

 

 

Addition to Exhibit A to 

Agreement for the Development of a Joint County Industrial and 

Business Park dated as of December 1, 2010, as amended, 

between Anderson County and Greenville County 

 

 

 

 



 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA  ) 

      ) 

COUNTY OF ANDERSON    ) 

 

 I, the undersigned Clerk to County Council of Anderson County, South Carolina, do hereby certify 

that attached hereto is a true, accurate and complete copy of an ordinance which was given reading, and 

received majority approval, by the County Council at meetings of_________, 20__, _________, 20__ and 

_________, 20__, at which meetings a quorum of members of County Council were present and voted, and 

an original of which ordinance is filed in the permanent records of the County Council. 

 

 

      _________________________________________ 

      Clerk, Anderson County Council 

 

 

Dated: _________, 20__ 



ORDINANCE NO. 2021-062 

AN ORDINANCE TO PROVIDE APPROVAL FOR ANDERSON COUNTY TO GRANT A 
PERPETUAL AND NON-EXCLUSIVE EASEMENT UNTO DUKE ENERGY CAROLINAS, 
LLC FOR THE REAL PROPERTY BEING 0.80 ACRES, COMMON AREA, HALTER DRIVE, 
PIEDMONT, SC 29673 BEARING ANDERSON COUNTY TAX MAP NUMBER 237-08-03-
001 TO FACILITATE THE RELOCATION OF ELECTRIC AND COMMUNICATION LINES; 
AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO 

 WHEREAS, Anderson County, South Carolina (the “County”) acting by and through its 

County Council (the “County Council”) is authorized under Title 4 of the Code of Laws of the 

State of South Carolina, as amended, to lease, sell, or otherwise dispose of real and personal 

property; and  

 WHEREAS, the County owns the real property commonly known as 0.80 acres, more or 

less, Common Area Halter Drive, Piedmont, SC 29673 bearing Anderson County Tax Map 

Number 237-08-03-001 (the “Property”) located within the County of Anderson;  

 WHEREAS, Duke Energy of the Carolinas, LLC (“Duke Energy”) has requested a 

perpetual and non-exclusive easement to construct, reconstruct, operate, patrol, maintain, repair, 

replace, relocate, add to, modify, and remove electric and communication lines including, but not 

limited to, all necessary supporting structures, and all other appurtenant apparatus and equipment 

for the transmission and distribution of electrical energy, and for technological purposes related to 

the operation of the electric facilities and for the communication purposes of Incumbent Local 

Exchange Carriers (the “Easement”) on the Property;  

 WHEREAS, the County desires to grant unto Duke Energy the requested Easement on the 

Property.  

 NOW THEREFORE, be it ordained by Anderson County Council, in a duly assembled 

meeting, that:  

1. Anderson County Council hereby approves the grant of the Easement to Duke Energy on 

the Property and that such Easement is further described and set forth on that certain 

Easement and Project Work Map attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by 

reference thereto and further directs the Anderson County Administrator and Chairman of 

County Council to execute all documents related thereto on behalf of the County.  

2. All Orders and Ordinances in conflict herewith are, to the extent of such conflict only, 

hereby repealed and rescinded.  



3. All Ordinances, Orders, Resolutions and actions of Anderson County Council inconsistent

herewith are, to the extent of such inconsistency only, hereby repealed, revoked and

rescinded.

4. This Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force upon Third Reading and Enactment by

Anderson County Council.

ENACTED in a duly assembled meeting this ____ day of ______, 2021. 

ATTEST: FOR ANDERSON COUNTY: 

___________________________ ___________________________________ 
By: Rusty Burns  By: Tommy Dunn  
Its: Administrator   Its: Chairman, Anderson County Council   

_____________________________ 
By: __________________________ 
Its: Clerk to Council  

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

_____________________________ 
By: Leon C. Harmon 
Its: County Attorney  

First Reading:  
Second Reading: 
Third Reading:  
Public Hearing:  



Exhibit A

BMInsog
Text Box
Parcel 2Owner: Maximiliano & Juan Leon Garcia Tax Id#: 2370005001Add: 3140-3148 River Rd

BMInsog
Text Box
WO# 38523158SC 153 & RIVER RDANDERSON COUNTYSOUTH CAROLINA

BMInsog
Text Box
Parcel 1Owner: Anderson CountyTax Id#: 2370803001Add: Halter Dr & River Rd

BMInsog
Line

BMInsog
Line



For Grantee’s Internal Use:  
Work Order #: 38523158  1  

Prepared by: Duke Energy Carolinas, LLC 
Return to: Duke Energy Carolinas, LLC 

Attn: c/o Southeastern Land Company 
PO Box 1241 

 Conway, SC 29528 

Parcel # 2370803001 
 

 

 
EASEMENT 

State of South Carolina  

County of Anderson 

 

THIS EASEMENT (“Easement”) is made this ____ day of _____________ 20____, from  

ANDERSON COUNTY, a political subdivision of the State of South Carolina  (“Grantor”, whether one 

or more), to DUKE ENERGY CAROLINAS, LLC, a North Carolina limited liability company 

(“Grantee”). 

 
Grantor, for and in consideration of the sum of One and 00/100 Dollar ($1.00) and other good and 

valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, does hereby grant 
unto Grantee a perpetual and non-exclusive easement, to construct, reconstruct, operate, patrol, maintain, 
repair, replace, relocate, add to, modify, and remove electric and communication lines including, but not 
limited to, all necessary supporting structures, and all other appurtenant apparatus and equipment for the 
transmission and distribution of electrical energy, and for technological purposes related to the operation 
of the electric facilities and for the communication purposes of Incumbent Local Exchange Carriers 
(collectively, “Facilities”). Grantor is the owner of that certain property described in that instrument 
recorded in Deed Book 14495, Page 23, Anderson County Register of Deeds (“Property”). The Facilities 
may be both overhead and underground and located in, upon, over, along, under, through, and across a 
portion of the Property within an easement area described as follows: A strip of land thirty feet (30’) in 
uniform width for the overhead portion of said Facilities and a strip of land twenty feet (20’) in uniform 
width for the underground portion of said Facilities, lying equidistant on both sides of a centerline, which 
centerline shall be established by the center of the Facilities as installed, along with an area ten feet (10’) 
wide on all sides of the foundation of any Grantee enclosure/transformer, vault and/or manhole, 
(hereinafter referred to as the “Easement Area”). 

The rights granted herein include, but are not limited to, the following: 
 

1. Grantee shall have the right of ingress and egress over the Easement Area, Property, and any 
adjoining lands now owned or hereinafter acquired by Grantor (using lanes, driveways, and 
adjoining public roads where practical as determined by Grantee). 

2. Grantee shall have the right to trim, cut down, and remove from the Easement Area, at any time 
or times and using safe and generally accepted arboricultural practices, trees, limbs, undergrowth, 
other vegetation, and obstructions. 



For Grantee’s Internal Use:  
Work Order #: 38523158  2  

3. Grantee shall have the right to trim, cut down, and remove from the Property, at any time or times 
and using safe and generally accepted arboricultural practices, dead, diseased, weak, dying, or 
leaning trees or limbs, which, in the opinion of Grantee, might fall upon the Easement Area or 
interfere with the safe and reliable operation of the Facilities. 

4. Grantee shall have the right to install necessary guy wires and anchors extending beyond the 
boundaries of the Easement Area.  

5. Grantee shall have the right to relocate the Facilities and Easement Area on the Property to 
conform to any future highway or street relocation, widening, or alterations. 

6. Grantor shall not place, or permit the placement of, any structures, improvements, facilities, or 
obstructions, within or adjacent to the Easement Area, which may interfere with the exercise of 
the rights granted herein to Grantee. Grantee shall have the right to remove any such structure, 
improvement, facility, or obstruction at the expense of Grantor. 

7. Excluding the removal of vegetation, structures, improvements, facilities, and obstructions as 
provided herein, Grantee shall promptly repair or cause to be repaired any physical damage to the 
surface area of the Easement Area and Property resulting from the exercise of the rights granted 
herein to Grantee. Such repair shall be to a condition which is reasonably close to the condition 
prior to the damage, and shall only be to the extent such damage was caused by Grantee or its 
contractors or employees. 

8. The rights granted in this Easement include the right to install Facilities wherever needed on the 
Property to serve future development on the Property and adjoining lands.  Portions of the 
Facilities may be installed immediately and other portions may be installed in the future as the 
need develops.  Facilities installed in the future shall be installed at locations mutually agreeable 
to the parties hereto if they are to be located outside of the Easement Area.  Upon any future 
installations of Facilities at mutually agreed locations, the Easement Area shall be deemed to 
include such future locations. 

9. All other rights and privileges reasonably necessary, in Grantee’s sole discretion, for the safe, 
reliable, and efficient installation, operation, and maintenance of the Facilities. 
 
The terms Grantor and Grantee shall include the respective heirs, successors, and assigns of 

Grantor and Grantee. The failure of Grantee to exercise or continue to exercise or enforce any of the 
rights herein granted shall not be construed as a waiver or abandonment of the right thereafter at any time, 
or from time to time, to exercise any and all such rights. 

 
TO HAVE AND TO HOLD said rights, privilege, and easement unto Grantee, its successors, 

licensees, and assigns, forever. Grantor warrants and covenants that Grantor has the full right and 
authority to convey to Grantee this perpetual Easement, and that Grantee shall have quiet and peaceful 
possession, use and enjoyment of the same.  



For Grantee’s Internal Use:  
Work Order #: 38523158  3  

 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Grantor has signed this Easement under seal effective this ____ day 

of _________, 20_____. 
 
Witnesses: 
 
 ANDERSON COUNTY     
____________________________________ a political subdivision of the State of South Carolina  
(Witness #1) 
 
 
    (SEAL) 

 

(Witness #2) By: ____________________________, _______Title 
 
 
STATE OF __________________________ 
 
COUNTY OF ________________________ 
 
 
I, _______________________________, a Notary Public of ____________________ County, State of  

 

__________________________, certify that ____________________________, as ______________  of 

 

 ANDERSON COUNTY, a political subdivision of the State of South Carolina, personally appeared before 

 

 me this day and acknowledged the due execution of the foregoing EASEMENT. 

 

Witness my hand and notarial seal, this ____ day of _____________________, 20_____. 

 

 Notary Public: _________________________ 

 Commission Expires: ____________________ 



Anderson County

November 30, 2020   Disclaimer accepted.

·
1 in = 251 ft

0 0.05 0.10.025 mi

0 0.08 0.160.04 km

TMS: 2370803001
Owner: ANDERSON COUNTY

Deed Book: 14495 Deed Page:23

Owner Address:101 S MAIN ST
City/State: ANDERSON  SC Zip Code: 29621

Tax District: 1
Sale Year: 2020 Sale Price:$1 Market Value:$3,000

ESRI, Highland Mapping, and Anderson County GISDescription:COMMON AREA HALTER DR   .80 AC
Current Plat: CP S 1323/10



A-1 

ORDINANCE NO. _2021-063 

 

 AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND AN AGREEMENT FOR THE DEVELOPMENT OF 

A JOINT COUNTY INDUSTRIAL AND BUSINESS PARK (2010 PARK) OF 

ANDERSON AND GREENVILLE COUNTIES SO AS TO ENLARGE THE PARK. 

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance No. 2010-026 enacted October 19, 2010 by Anderson County 

Council, Anderson County entered into an Agreement for the Development of a Joint County Industrial and 

Business Park (2010 Park) dated as of December 1, 2010, as amended, with Greenville County (the 

“Agreement”); and 

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 3(A) of the Agreement, the boundaries of the park created therein 

(the “Park”) may be enlarged pursuant to ordinances of the County Councils of Anderson County and 

Greenville County; and 

 

 WHEREAS, in connection with certain incentives being offered by Greenville County to Project 

Storybook, it is now desired that the boundaries of the Park be enlarged to include certain parcels in 

Greenville County;  

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by Anderson County Council that Exhibit A to the 

Agreement is hereby and shall be amended and revised to include property located in Greenville County 

described in the schedule attached to this Ordinance, and, pursuant to Section 3(B) of the Agreement, upon 

adoption by Greenville County of a corresponding ordinance, the Agreement shall be deemed amended to so 

include such property and Exhibit A as so revised, without further action by either county. 

 

 DONE in meeting duly assembled this ____ day of_______________, 20__.  

 

 

 ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

(SEAL) By:________________________________________ 

  Chairman, Anderson County Council 

 

Attest: 

By:_______________________________ 

 Anderson County Administrator 

 

 

By:_______________________________ 

 Clerk to Anderson County Council 

 

 

 

First Reading: _________, 20__  

Second Reading: _________, 20__  

Third Reading: _________, 20__  

Public Hearing: _________, 20__  



A-2 

 

Addition to Exhibit A to 

Agreement for the Development of a Joint County Industrial and 

Business Park dated as of December 1, 2010, as amended, 

between Anderson County and Greenville County 

 

 

 

 



 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA  ) 

      ) 

COUNTY OF ANDERSON    ) 

 

 I, the undersigned Clerk to County Council of Anderson County, South Carolina, do hereby certify 

that attached hereto is a true, accurate and complete copy of an ordinance which was given reading, and 

received majority approval, by the County Council at meetings of_________, 20__, _________, 20__ and 

_________, 20__, at which meetings a quorum of members of County Council were present and voted, and 

an original of which ordinance is filed in the permanent records of the County Council. 

 

 

      _________________________________________ 

      Clerk, Anderson County Council 

 

 

Dated: _________, 20__ 



1 

ORDINANCE NO. 2021- 064 

 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING AN AMENDMENT TO AN EXISTING FEE IN LIEU OF 

TAX AGREEMENT BETWEEN ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA AND MILLIKEN 

& COMPANY TO EXTEND THE INVESTMENT PERIOD FOR AN ADDITIONAL FIVE 

YEARS, IN RETURN AND EXPECTATION FOR ADDITIONAL INVESTMENT IN THE 

COUNTY, AND TO PROVIDE FOR THE PROVISION OF CERTAIN SPECIAL SOURCE 

REVENUE CREDITS/INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENT CREDITS; AND OTHER 

MATTERS RELATED THERETO. 

 

WHEREAS, Anderson County, South Carolina (the “County”), acting by and through its 

County Council (the “County Council”) and pursuant to the provisions of the Code of Laws of South 

Carolina, 1976, as amended (the “Code”), and specifically Title 12, Chapter 44 of the Code (the 

“FILOT Act”) and pursuant to an Ordinance duly enacted (the “Ordinance”), did heretofore enter into 

a Fee in Lieu of Tax Agreement (the “FILOT Agreement”), dated as of November 15, 2016, with 

Milliken & Company, a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), pursuant to which the Company 

agreed to make, and the County agreed to accept, negotiated fee in lieu of tax (“FILOT”) payments 

with respect to certain capital facilities located within the County as more particularly described in the 

FILOT Agreement (the “Project”); and 

 

WHEREAS, Company is considering making additional investment in the Project; and 

 

WHEREAS, in accordance with the requirement of Section 12-44-30(13) of the FILOT 

Act, Company has applied to the County seeking a five year extension of the Investment Period 

(as such term is defined in the FILOT Agreement); and 

 

WHEREAS, in order to induce Company to increase its investment within the County, in 

accordance with Section 12-44-30(13) of the FILOT Act, the County desires to extend the period 

for completion of the Project by an additional five (5) years, to a new total Investment Period of 

ten (10) years, which extension is intended to amount to the maximum extension of such period 

permitted by current law and pursuant to Title 4, Chapter 1 of the Code (the “Multi-County Park 

Act”), and Title 4, Chapter 29, of the Code, to provide infrastructure credits against payment in lieu 

of taxes for reimbursement in respect of investment in certain infrastructure enhancing the economic 

development of the County; through all such powers the industrial development of the State of South 

Carolina (the “State”) will be promoted and trade developed by inducing manufacturing and 

commercial enterprises to locate or remain in the State and thus utilize and employ the manpower, 

products and resources of the State and benefit the general public welfare of the County by providing 

services, employment, recreation or other public benefits not otherwise provided locally; and 

 

WHEREAS, the County has previously approved the Company’s extension request 

pursuant to that certain Resolution adopted on _______________, 2021; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Company has represented that the Company will increase its minimum 

investment in the Project from at least $2,500,000 to at least $5,000,00, within the Investment Period, 

as extended for a period totaling ten (10) years; and 

 



2 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to the authority of Section 4-1-170 of the Multi-County Park Act and 

Article VIII, Section 13 of the South Carolina Constitution, the County intends to cause the Project, 

to the extent not already therein located, to be placed in a joint county industrial and business park 

such that the Project will receive the benefits of the Multi-County Park Act; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the County desires to enter into an amendment to the FILOT Agreement 

provide for certain special source revenue credits/infrastructure improvement credits to be claimed 

by the Company against its payments of fees-in-lieu-of taxes with respect to the Project pursuant to 

Section 4-1-175 of the Multi-County Park Act and to reflect the new minimum investment in the 

Project, which is a material condition to the County granting the credits described herein and 

extending the Investment Period; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the County Council has caused to be prepared and presented to this meeting the 

form of draft First Amendment to Fee in Lieu of Tax Agreement (the “First Amendment”) which the 

County proposes to execute and deliver; and 

 

 WHEREAS, it appears that the document above referred to, which is now before this 

meeting, is in appropriate form and is an appropriate instrument to be executed and delivered or 

approved by the County for the purposes intended;   

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by Anderson County, South Carolina, as 

follows: 

 

Section 1. The form, terms, and provisions of the First Amendment presented to this 

meeting and filed with the Clerk to County Council or Assistant Clerk to County Council be and they 

are hereby approved, and all of the terms, provisions, and conditions thereof are hereby incorporated 

herein by reference as if the First Amendment were set out in this Ordinance in its entirety. The 

Chairman of County Council, the Administrator of the County, the Clerk to County Council and/or the 

Assistant Clerk to County Council be and hereby are authorized, empowered, and directed to execute, 

acknowledge, and deliver the First Amendment in the name and on behalf of the County, and thereupon 

to cause the First Amendment to be delivered to the Company. The First Amendment is to be in 

substantially the form now before this meeting and hereby approved, or with such changes therein as 

shall not materially adversely affect the rights of the County thereunder and as shall be approved by 

the officials of the County executing the same, upon the advice of counsel to the County, their 

execution thereof to constitute conclusive evidence of their approval of any and all changes or revisions 

therein from the form of First Amendment now before this meeting. 

 

Section 2. The Chairman of County Council, the County Administrator, the Clerk to the 

County Council and the Assistant Clerk to County Council, for and on behalf of the County, are hereby 

each authorized and directed to do any and all things necessary or proper to effect the execution and 

delivery of the First Amendment, and the performance of all obligations of the County under and 

pursuant to the First Amendment. The Chairman of County Council, the County Administrator, the 

Clerk to County Council, the Assistant Clerk to County Council and any other proper officer of County, 

be and each of them is hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver any and all documents 

and instruments and to do and to cause to be done any and all acts and things necessary or proper for 

carrying out the transactions contemplated by this Ordinance. 



3 

 

Section 3. The provisions of this Ordinance are hereby declared to be separable and if any 

section, phrase, or provision shall for any reason be declared by a court of competent jurisdiction to be 

invalid or unenforceable, such declaration shall not affect the validity of the remainder of the sections, 

phrases, and provisions hereunder. 

 

Section 4. All orders, resolutions, ordinances, and parts thereof in conflict herewith are, 

to the extent of such conflict only, hereby repealed and this Ordinance shall take effect and be in full 

force from and after its passage and approval. 

  

WITNESS our hands and seals this _______ day of _________________, 2021. 

 

      ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

 

 

              

      Tommy Dunn, Chairman 

Anderson County Council 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

        

Rusty Burns, County Administrator 

Anderson County, South Carolina 

 

 

        

Janie L. Turmon, Assistant Clerk to Council 

Anderson County, South Carolina 

 

 

Approved as to form: 

 

 

________________________________ 

Leon C. Harmon, County Attorney 

Anderson County, South Carolina 

 

 

First Reading:  _________________, 2021 

Second Reading: _________________, 2021 

Third Reading:  _________________, 2021 

Public Hearing: _________________, 2021 

 

 
NPGVL1:2107402.1 



   

1 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO THAT CERTAIN FEE IN LIEU OF TAX AGREEMENT 

DATED AS OF NOVEMBER 15, 2016 

THIS FIRST AMENDMENT TO THAT CERTAIN FEE IN LIEU OF TAX 

AGREEMENT DATED AS OF NOVEMBER 15, 2016 (the “First Amendment”) made and 

entered into as of _________________, 2021, by and between ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH 

CAROLINA, a body politic and corporate and a political subdivision of the State of South 

Carolina (the “County”) and MILLIKEN & COMPANY, a Delaware corporation ( the 

“Company”). 

RECITALS 

A. The County and the Company did heretofore enter into that certain Fee in Lieu of 

Tax Agreement dated as of November 15, 2016 (the “Fee Agreement”), pursuant to which the 

Company agreed to make, and the County agreed to accept, negotiated fee in lieu of tax payments 

with respect to the Project (as defined in the  Fee Agreement). 

 

B. The Company has applied for a five year extension of the Project Standard 

Investment Period (as defined in the Fee Agreement) as permitted under Section 12-44-30(13) of 

the Code (as defined in the Fee Agreement) and has requested a special source revenue 

credit/infrastructure improvement credit against FILOT Payments as defined in the Fee 

Agreement”) as permitted by law and pursuant to Title 4, Chapter 1 of the Code (the “Multi-County 

Park Act” and Title 4, Chapter 29 of the Code , and the County desires to extend the Standard 

Investment Period by an additional five years, in accordance with Section 12-44-30(13) of the 

Code and to provide for a special source revenue credit or infrastructure improvement credit 

against FILOT Payments, all in return for the Company’s additional investment in the Project. 

 

C. The County has determined that, in consideration of the Company’s substantial on-

going investment in the Project including the Company’s agreement to increase its minimum 

investment in the Project from at least $2,500,0000 to at least $5,000,000, the economic 

development of the County will be served by such five-year extension of the Project Standard 

Investment Period and by the granting of a special source revenue credit/infrastructure 

improvement credit against the Company’s FILOT Payments for the Project in the Park (all as 

defined in the Fee Agreement as amended); and 

 

D. The County authorized the foregoing actions to be taken for the benefit of the 

Company pursuant to that certain Resolution adopted by the Council with respect to this First 

Amendment on ____________________, 2021 and pursuant to that certain Ordinance with respect 

to this First Amendment on ______________________, 2021. 

TERMS OF FIRST AMENDMENT 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises, and respective representations and 

agreements hereinafter contained, and the sum of $10.00 in hand, duly paid by the Company to 

the County, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the County and the 



   

2 

Company agree as follows:  

Section 1.  Definitions.  Defined terms utilized herein and not otherwise defined herein shall 

have the meanings ascribed to them in the Fee Agreement. The recitals set forth above are true and 

correct and hereby incorporated into this First Amendment. 

Section 2.  Amendment of  Fee Agreement.  The Fee Agreement shall be amended as follows: 

(a) The definition of “Contract Minimum Investment Requirement” is hereby 

revised to read as follows:   

“Contract Minimum Investment Requirement” shall mean, with respect to 

the Project, investment by the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates of at least collectively 

$5,000,000 (each at least $2,500,000) in Economic Development Property subject to ad valorem 

taxation (in the absence of this Fee Agreement) during the Standard Investment Period”. 

(b) The definition of “Equipment” is hereby amended to add and include 

“improvements”. 

(c) The definition of “Standard Investment Period” is hereby revised to read 

as follows:   

“Standard Investment Period” shall mean the period beginning on the first 

day of any purchase or acquisition of Economic Development Property and ending ten (10) years 

after the Commencement Date.”. 

(d) The following terms are hereby added to Section 1.01 of the Fee Agreement: 

“Infrastructure” shall mean, to the extent provided in Section 4-29-68 of the Code, 

infrastructure serving the County and improved or unimproved real estate and personal property 

including machinery and equipment used in the operation of the Project. 

 

“Infrastructure Costs” shall mean the costs of designing, acquiring, constructing, 

improving, or expanding the Infrastructure serving, or used in the operation of, the Project. 

  

 “Infrastructure Improvement Credit” shall mean the credit in the amount set forth in 

Section 4.02 hereof against the FILOT Payments as authorized by Section 12-44-70 of the Act and 

Section 4-1-175 of the Multi-County Park Act to reimburse the Company for Costs of the 

Infrastructure.  

 

“Park Agreement” shall mean Agreement for the Development of a Joint County Industrial 

and Business Park (2010 Park)  (the “Park”) dated as of December 1, 2010, as amended, entered 

into between the County and Greenville County, South Carolina with respect to the Project and 

the land upon which the Project is located. 

 

  (e) The following provision is hereby added to the Fee Agreement as Section 



   

3 

4.02 of the Fee Agreement which Section 4.02 previously had been intentionally omitted. 

“Section 4.02  Infrastructure Improvement Credit   

 

(a) The Company agrees to pay, or cause to be paid, all Infrastructure Costs as 

and when due. The Company agrees that, as of any date during the term of this Fee Agreement, 

the cumulative dollar amount expended by the Company on Infrastructure Costs shall equal or 

exceed the cumulative dollar amount of the Infrastructure Improvement Credit received by the 

Company. Upon the request of the County or at the election of the Company, prior to the first 

year’s Infrastructure Improvement Credit to be credited against the Company’s FILOT Payments 

as provided in Section 4.02(b) hereto, the Company shall certify the cumulative total amount of 

Infrastructure Costs incurred as of December 31 of the year to which such FILOT Payments relate. 

For example, should the Company elect to apply the Infrastructure Improvement Credit against its 

2021 fee in lieu of tax bill, upon the request of the County or the election of the Company, the 

Company shall certify the cumulative total amount of Infrastructure Costs as of December 31, 

2021. The form of such certification is attached hereto as Exhibit A. Upon the request of the 

County, the Company shall re-certify the cumulative amount of Infrastructure Costs incurred if, in 

any year in which an Infrastructure Improvement Credit is to be applied, the cumulative amount 

of Infrastructure Improvement Credits will exceed the cumulative Infrastructure Costs incurred as 

previously certified. 

 

(b) Pursuant to Section 12-44-70 of the Act, the County authorizes and grants 

the Company an Infrastructure Improvement Credit in an annual amount equal to twenty-five 

percent (25%) of the FILOT payments for the Project in the Park, but only with respect to and to 

the extent of the FILOT payments made on behalf of the Project in the Park, for ten (10) 

consecutive years of FILOT payments on behalf of the Project in the Park commencing with 

FILOT Payments made for calendar year 2021. The Treasurer of the County shall display and 

subtract the Infrastructure Improvement Credit from the FILOT Payment statement sent to the 

Company for the duration of the Infrastructure Improvement Credit.” 

 

 (f) In line 7 of Section 4.06 of the Fee Agreement, the words “Contract Minimum 

Investment Requirement” are hereby deleted and the words “FILOT Act Minimum Investment 

Requirement” are substituted in lieu thereof. 

 

Section 3.  Entire Understanding.  Except as expressly amended as set forth above in Section 

2 of this First Amendment, the terms and provisions of the Fee Agreement shall remain unchanged 

and in full force and effect. The Fee Agreement, as amended by this First Amendment, express the 

entire understanding and all agreements of the parties hereto pertaining to the matters set forth 

herein and therein. 

Section 4.  Severability.  In the event that any clause or provisions of this First Amendment 

shall be held to be invalid by any court of competent jurisdiction, the invalidity of such clause or 

provision shall not affect any of the remaining provisions hereof. 



   

4 

Section 5.  Multiple Counterparts.  This First Amendment may be executed in multiple 

counterparts, each of which shall be an original but all of which shall constitute but one and the 

same instrument. 

[Signatures begin on next page] 

  



   

5 

 

IN WITNESS THEREOF, the County has executed this First Amendment to Fee 

Agreement by causing its name to be hereunto subscribed and to be attested to by the Clerk of its 

County Council and the Company has executed this First Amendment to Fee Agreement being 

done as of the day and year first above written. 

 

ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

 

 

              

      Tommy Dunn, Chairman 

Anderson County Council 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

        

Rusty Burns, County Administrator 

Anderson County, South Carolina 

 

 

        

Janie L. Turmon, Assistant Clerk to Council 

Anderson County, South Carolina 

 

 

Approved as to form: 

 

 

________________________________ 

Leon C. Harmon, County Attorney 

Anderson County, South Carolina 

 

 
[Signature page 1 – First Amendment to Fee Agreement] 

 

  



   

6 

MILLIKEN & COMPANY 

 

 

By: _____________________________________ 

 Print Name: _______________________________ 

 Title: ____________________________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 
[Signature page 2 – First Amendment to Fee Agreement] 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

NPGVL1:2107411.1 



  
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2021-066 

 

 AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND AN AGREEMENT FOR THE 

DEVELOPMENT OF A JOINT COUNTY INDUSTRIAL AND BUSINESS 

PARK (2010 PARK) OF ANDERSON AND GREENVILLE COUNTIES SO 

AS TO ENLARGE THE PARK; AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED 

THERETO. 

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance No. 2010-026 enacted October 19, 2010 by Anderson 

County Council, Anderson County, South Carolina (“Anderson County”) entered into an 

Agreement for the Development of a Joint County Industrial and Business Park (2010 Park) dated 

as of December 1, 2010, as amended (the “Agreement”), with Greenville County, South Carolina 

(“Greenville County”); and 

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 3(A) of the Agreement, the boundaries of the park created 

therein (the “Park”) may be enlarged pursuant to ordinances of the County Councils of Anderson 

County and Greenville County; and 

 

 WHEREAS, in connection with certain incentives being offered by Greenville County, it is 

now desired that the boundaries of the Park be enlarged to include certain parcels located in 

Greenville County. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by Anderson County Council that Exhibit A to the 

Agreement is hereby and shall be amended and revised to include, effective as of ____________, 

2021, those certain parcels located in Anderson County described in Schedule 1 attached hereto and 

made part hereof (the “Additional Land”), and, pursuant to Section 3(B) of the Agreement, upon 

adoption by Greenville County of a corresponding ordinance, the Agreement shall be deemed 

amended to so include, effective as of __________, 2021, the Additional Land, without further 

action by either county. 

 

[Signatures on Next Page] 



 

 

 DONE in meeting duly assembled this _____ day of _____________, 2021.  

 

ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

 

 

              

      Tommy Dunn, Chairman 

Anderson County Council 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

        

Rusty Burns, County Administrator 

Anderson County, South Carolina 

 

 

        

Janie L. Turmon, Assistant Clerk to Council 

Anderson County, South Carolina 

 

 

Approved as to form: 

 

 

________________________________ 

Leon C. Harmon, County Attorney 

Anderson County, South Carolina 

 

 

 

First Reading: ____________, 2021  

Second Reading: ____________, 2021  

Third Reading: ____________, 2021  

Public Hearing: ____________, 2021  

 

 

 



 

 SCHEDULE 1 

 

Addition to Exhibit A to Agreement for the Development of a Joint County 

Industrial and Business Park dated as of December 1, 2010, as amended, between 

Anderson County and Greenville County 

 

Milliken Properties 

 

1.  Cushman Plant – 409 Gossett Drive, Williamston, SC 29697 

 

2.  Gerrish Milliken Plant – 100 Dalton Drive, Pendleton, SC 29670 

 

3.  Pendleton Finishing Plant – 200 Excelsior Mill Road, Pendleton, SC 29670 (to  

     the extent located in Anderson County) 

 

 



 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA  ) 

      ) 

COUNTY OF ANDERSON    ) 

 

 I, the undersigned Assistant Clerk to County Council of Anderson County, South Carolina, 

do hereby certify (i) that attached hereto is a true, accurate and complete copy of an ordinance 

which was given reading, and received majority approval, by the County Council at meetings of 

____________, 2021, ____________, 2021 and __________________, 2021, at which meetings 

a quorum of members of County Council were present and voted, and an original of which 

ordinance is filed in the permanent records of the County Council; and (ii) the public hearing for the 

attached ordinance was conducted by County Council at the County Council meeting of 

_______________, 2021.   

 

 

      _________________________________________ 

      Janie L. Turmon, Assistant Clerk to Council 

Anderson County, South Carolina 

 

 

Dated: ________________, 2021 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
NPGVL1:2107421.1 



ANDERSON COUNTY 

ORDINANCE NO. 2021-067 

 
A ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING (1) THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A FEE 

IN LIEU OF TAX AND INCENTIVE AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN ANDERSON 

COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA (THE “COUNTY”) AND A COMPANY IDENTIFIED 

FOR THE TIME BEING AS PROJECT STINGRAY, ACTING FOR ITSELF, ONE OR 

MORE AFFILIATES, AND/OR OTHER PROJECT SPONSORS (THE “COMPANY”), 

PURSUANT TO WHICH THE COUNTY SHALL COVENANT TO ACCEPT 

CERTAIN NEGOTIATED FEES IN LIEU OF AD VALOREM TAXES WITH 

RESPECT TO THE EXPANSION OF CERTAIN FACILITIES IN THE COUNTY 

(COLLECTIVELY, THE “EXPANSION PROJECT”); (2) THE BENEFITS OF A 

MULTI-COUNTY INDUSTRIAL OR BUSINESS PARK TO BE MADE AVAILABLE 

TO THE COMPANY AND THE EXPANSION PROJECT; (3) CERTAIN SPECIAL 

SOURCE REVENUE CREDITS IN CONNECTION WITH THE EXPANSION 
PROJECT; AND (4) OTHER MATTERS RELATING THERETO. 

 



ANDERSON COUNTY 

ORDINANCE NO. 2021-068 

 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING (1) THE CONVERSION AND RE-

DOCUMENTATION OF THAT CERTAIN LEASE AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA (THE “COUNTY”) AND A COMPANY 

IDENTIFIED FOR THE TIME BEING AS PROJECT STINGRAY, ACTING FOR 

ITSELF, ONE OR MORE AFFILIATES, AND/OR OTHER PROJECT SPONSORS, 

INCLUDING ALL INCENTIVE ARRANGEMENTS SET FORTH THEREIN, 

PERTAINING TO CERTAIN EXISTING FACILITIES LOCATED WITHIN THE 

COUNTY; (2) THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF ONE OR MORE 

AGREEMENTS, INSTRUMENTS, AND OTHER DOCUMENTS IN CONNECTION 

WITH SUCH CONVERSION AND RE-DOCUMENTATION; AND (3) OTHER 

MATTERS RELATING THERETO. 

 



   
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2021-048 

ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A FIVE YEAR EXTENSION OF THE 

INVESTMENT PERIOD UNDER THAT CERTAIN FEE IN LIEU OF 

TAX AGREEMENT BETWEEN ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH 

CAROLINA AND MILLIKEN & COMPANY 

WHEREAS, Anderson County, South Carolina (the “County”), acting by and through its 

County Council (the “County Council”) and pursuant to the provisions of the Code of Laws of 

South Carolina, 1976, as amended (the “Code”), and specifically Title 12, Chapter 44 of the Code 

(the “FILOT Act”) and pursuant to an Ordinance duly enacted (the “Ordinance”), did heretofore 

enter into a Fee in Lieu of Tax Agreement (the “FILOT Agreement”), dated as of November 15, 

2016, with Milliken & Company, a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), pursuant to which 

Company agreed to make, and the County agreed to accept, negotiated fee in lieu of tax (“FILOT”) 

payments with respect to certain capital facilities located within the County as more particularly 

described in the FILOT Agreement (the “Project”); and 

 

WHEREAS, Company is considering making additional investment in the Project; and 

 

WHEREAS, in accordance with the requirement of Section 12-44-30(13) of the FILOT 

Act, Company has applied to the County seeking a five year extension of the Investment Period 

(as such term is defined in the FILOT Agreement); and 

WHEREAS, in order to induce Company to increase its investment within the County, in 

accordance with Section 12-44-30(13) of the FILOT Act, the County desires to extend the 

Investment Period for completion of the Project by an additional five years, which extension is 

intended to amount to the maximum extension of such period permitted by current law. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Council as follows: 

Section 1. In accordance with Section 12-44-30(13) of the FILOT Act, the County 

hereby approves an extension of the Investment Period for additional five (5) years (for a total 

Investment Period of ten (10) years).  The extension hereby granted shall automatically be effective 

upon the date this Resolution is passed, adopted and/or approved without the need for any 

additional documentation. 

Section 2. The Chairman of the County Council, the County Administrator, the Clerk 

to the County Council and any other proper officer of the County, for and on behalf of the County, 

be and each of them are hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver any and all 

documents and instruments, and to do and to cause to be done any and all acts and things, as may 

be necessary or proper for carrying out the transactions contemplated by this Resolution. 

Section 3. The provisions of this Resolution are hereby declared to be separable and, 

if any section, phrase or provision shall for any reason be declared by a court of competent 



 - 2 -  
 

jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable, such declaration shall not affect the validity of the 

remainder of the sections, phrases, and provisions hereunder. 

Section 4. Except as modified by this Resolution and the implementing legislative acts 

of the County, the existing ordinance of the County approving the FILOT Agreement and the 

FILOT Agreement itself shall remain in full force and effect. All other orders, resolutions and parts 

thereof in conflict herewith are, to the extent of such conflict, hereby repealed and this Resolution 

shall take effect and be in full force from and after its passage and approval. 

DONE, PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED in a meeting duly assembled this 

_____ day of _______________, 2021. 

 

ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

 

 

              

      Tommy Dunn, Chairman 

Anderson County Council 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

        

Rusty Burns, County Administrator 

Anderson County, South Carolina 

 

 

        

Janie L. Turmon, Assistant Clerk to Council 

Anderson County, South Carolina 

 

 

Approved as to form: 

 

 

________________________________ 

Leon C. Harmon, County Attorney 

Anderson County, South Carolina 

 

 

 

 

 
 
NPGVL1:2107248.1 



PPAB 6399163v5 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) 

     )  RESOLUTION NO.  2021-049 

COUNTY OF ANDERSON  ) 

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING PURSUANT TO TITLE 12, CHAPTER 44 OF 

THE CODE OF LAWS OF SOUTH CAROLINA 1976, AS AMENDED, THE 

EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF AN AMENDMENT TO THAT CERTAIN 

AMENDED & RESTATED FEE-IN-LIEU OF AD VALOREM TAXES AND 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT, BY AND BETWEEN ANDERSON 

COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA, ONE WORLD TECHNOLOGIES, INC., AS 

SPONSOR, AND CERTAIN SPONSOR AFFILIATES; AND OTHER RELATED 

MATTERS. 

 

WHEREAS, Anderson County (the “County”) is a political subdivision of the State of South 

Carolina and, as such, has all powers granted to counties by the Constitution and the general law of this 

State; 

 

WHEREAS, the County, acting by and through its County Council, is authorized and empowered 

under and pursuant to the provisions of Title 12, Chapter 44, and Sections 4-1-170, 4-1-175, and 4-29-68 

of the Code of Laws of South Carolina, 1976, as amended (collectively, the “Act”) (i) to enter into 

agreements with qualifying companies to encourage investment in projects constituting economic 

development property through which the economic development of the State of South Carolina will be 

promoted by inducing new and existing manufacturing and commercial enterprises to locate and remain in 

the State and thus utilize and employ manpower and other resources of the State; (ii) to covenant with such 

industry to accept certain fee payments in lieu of ad valorem taxes (“FILOT”) with respect to such 

investment; (iii) to create multi-county industrial or business parks with one or more contiguous counties 

and include certain properties therein, and, in its discretion, include within the boundaries of these parks 

the property of qualifying industries or businesses, and under the authority provided in the Act, the County 

has created previously a multi-county park with Greenville County, South Carolina through the Agreement 

for Development of Joint County Industrial and Business Park dated as of November 16, 2010, as amended 

(“Park Agreement”); and (iv) to provide credits to qualifying companies to offset qualifying infrastructure 

related expenditures pursuant to the Act; 

 

WHEREAS, in 2015 One World Technologies, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), 

approached the County with its plans to establish one or more commercial or industrial facilities in the 

County and expand one or more existing facilities in the County through the acquisition, lease, construction, 

and purchase of certain land, buildings, furnishings, fixtures, apparatuses, and equipment (the "Project"), 

which was expected to result in new investment in real and personal property of approximately $85,725,000 

in the County;  

WHEREAS, pursuant to a Resolution adopted April 7, 2015, the County Council identified the 

Project, as required under the Act, and pursuant to County Council Ordinance No. 2015-011 adopted May 

8, 2015, (“FILOT Ordinance”), authorized (i) the execution and delivery of that certain Fee in Lieu of Tax 

and Economic Development Agreement (“Fee Agreement”) with the Company; (ii) the inclusion of the 

Project in the Park, pursuant to the Park Agreement; (iii) the grant of certain special source revenue credits 

in amounts as more fully described in the Fee Agreement; (iv) the extension of the initial investment period 

under the Fee Agreement by five (5) years, resulting in an investment period that ends ten (10) years after 

the Commencement Date as defined in the Fee Agreement; (v) the extension of the term of the Fee 

Agreement by ten years for a total term of forty (40) years for each phase of investment; (vi) the waiver of 

any fees applied by the County's Building and Codes Department, up to $250,000, as described in the Fee 

Agreement; and (vii) other incentives further described in the Fee Agreement; 



  
PPAB 6399163v5 

WHEREAS, in 2017, the Company approached the County regarding its desire to expand the 

Project by making additional investments in the County, including additional real property improvements 

and personal property expenditures related to the construction of certain office and research and 

development facilities at the Project site (“2017 Expansion Project”); and due to the additional investments 

contemplated for the 2017 Expansion Project, the County approved, by County Council Ordinance No. 

2017-012 adopted May 2, 2017, that certain First Amendment to the 2015 Fee Agreement (“2017 First 

Amendment” and, together with the 2015 Fee Agreement, the 2017 Fee Agreement) providing for enhanced 

SSRC benefits to the Company; and 

 

WHEREAS, in 2020, the Company approached the County regarding its desire to formally add 

multiple legal entities to the 2017 Fee Agreement. The County formally approved multiple sponsor affiliates 

pursuant to that certain County Council Resolution #R2020-020 dated August 25, 2020; and 

 

WHEREAS, in 2020, the Company and the Sponsor Affiliates approached the County regarding its 

desire to again expand the Project by making additional investments in the County consisting of 

approximately $35,000,000 in Economic Development Property (“2020 Expansion Project and, together 

with the 2015 Project and the 2017 Expansion Project, the “Project”); and in recognition of the 

overperformance of the Company and the Sponsor Affiliates, the County formally approved Ordinance No. 

2020-18 dated December 1, 2020 amending the 2017 Fee Agreement to provide for enhanced SSRC 

benefits to the Company and the Sponsor Affiliates as described in more detail in that certain Amended & 

Restated FILOT Agreement dated December 1, 2020 (“2020 Fee Agreement”); and 

WHEREAS, in 2021, the Company and the Sponsor Affiliates approached the County regarding its 

desire to supplement the legal description in Exhibit A to the 2020 Fee Agreement and to add Huntington 

Technology Finance, Inc. and Hart Consumer Products, Inc. to the 2020 Fee Agreement as Sponsor 

Affiliates, and the County formally approved Resolution R2021-059 on September 21, 2021 to affect these 

changes; and 

WHEREAS, under Section 1.1 of the 2020 Fee Agreement, Exhibit A to the 2020 Fee Agreement, 

which describes the real property associated with the Project, may be supplemented from time to time and 

pursuant to Section 4.6 of the 2020 Fee Agreement and Section 12-44-40(K) of the Act, the 2020 Fee 

Agreement may be amended in writing by an agreement lawfully entered into between the parties; 

WHEREAS, the County Council desires to amend the 2020 Fee Agreement to supplement the legal 

description in Exhibit A to the 2020 Fee Agreement; and 

 

WHEREAS, the County Council has caused to be prepared and presented to this meeting the form 

of an Amendment to the Amended and Restated Fee in Lieu of Ad Valorem Taxes and Incentive Agreement, 

attached hereto as Exhibit A (“Amendment”), which is reflective of the supplemented legal description and 

which the County proposes to execute and deliver; and 

 

WHEREAS, it appears that the Amendment above referred to, which is now before this meeting, 

is in appropriate form and is an appropriate instrument to be executed and delivered or approved by the 

County for the purposes intended; and 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Council as follows: 

 

Section 1.   Authorization to Execute and Deliver Amendment.  The form, terms, and provisions 

of the Amendment presented to this meeting, attached hereto as Exhibit A, and filed with the Clerk to 

County Council are hereby approved, and all of the terms, provisions, and conditions thereof are hereby 

incorporated herein by reference as if the Amendment was set out in this Ordinance in its entirety. The Chair 

of County Council is authorized and directed to execute the Amendment with any minor modifications and 



  
PPAB 6399163v5 

revisions as may be approved by the Chair of County Council, the County Administrator, and the County 

Attorney, in the name of and on behalf of the County, and the Clerk to County Council is authorized and 

directed to attest the same; and the Chair of County Council, the County Administrator, and the County 

Attorney are further authorized and directed to deliver the executed Amendment to the Company.  

 

 Section 2. Further Acts.  The County Council authorizes the County Administrator, other County 

staff, and the County Attorney, along with any designees and agents who any of these officials deems necessary 

and proper, in the name of and on behalf of the County (each an “Authorized Individual”), to take whatever 

further actions, and enter into whatever further agreements, as any Authorized Individual deems to be 

reasonably necessary and prudent to effect the intent of this Resolution. 

 

 Section 3.  General Repealer.  All ordinances, resolutions, and their parts in conflict with this 

Resolution are, to the extent of that conflict repealed.  

 

 Section 4.  Severability.  Should any part, provision, or term of this Resolution be deemed 

unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such finding or 

determination shall not affect the rest and remainder of the Ordinance or any part, provision or term thereof, 

all of which is hereby deemed separable. 

 

 

 

  



  
PPAB 6399163v5 

Done in meeting duly assembled this ____ day of October, 2021.    

 

 

      ANDERSON COUNTY COUNCIL: 

ATTEST:  

 

 

 

            

Rusty Burns     Tommy Dunn, Chairman 

Anderson County Administrator   Anderson County Council 

 

 

      

Lacey A. Croegaert 

Anderson County Clerk to Council 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

      

Leon C. Harmon 

Anderson County Attorney 

   

 

 

:   

 

 



  
PPAB 6399163v5 

EXHIBIT A TO RESOLUTION 

 

Amendment to the Amended & Restated FILOT Agreement 

 

[ATTACHED] 

  



  
PPAB 6399163v5 

AMENDMENT TO THE AMENDED AND RESTATED FEE-IN-LIEU OF 

AD VALOREM TAXES AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

BY AND BETWEEN ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA, ONE WORLD 

TECHNOLOGIES, INC., AND CERTAIN SPONSOR AFFILIATES 

  

This amendment (“Amendment”) amends that certain Amended and Restated Fee In Lieu Of Ad 

Valorem Taxes And Economic Development Agreement dated December 1, 2020 ("A&R Fee Agreement") 

entered into by and between Anderson County, South Carolina ("County"), One World Technologies, Inc., 

a Delaware corporation authorized to conduct business in South Carolina, along with its affiliated and 

related entities and assigns, as Sponsor (collectively, the "Company"), and certain Sponsor Affiliates.  This 

Amendment is hereby entered into and made effective this _____ day of October, 2021.  

 

WHEREAS, on December 1, 2020, the County and the Company entered into the A&R Fee 

Agreement providing certain economic development incentives to the Company in exchange for the 

Company's commitment to make substantial investments in the County; and  

 

WHEREAS, the County and the Company now wish to amend the A&R Fee Agreement to reflect 

certain additional investments made by the Company in the County, primarily in the form of additional Real 

Property to be added to the legal description appearing in Exhibit A to the A&R Fee Agreement. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, the A&R Fee Agreement is hereby amended by replacing the legal 

description attached as Exhibit A to the A&R Fee Agreement in its entirety with the legal description 

attached to this Amendment as Exhibit A. 

 

 

 

SIGNATURES APPEAR ON FOLLOWING PAGE 

  



  
PPAB 6399163v5 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the County, acting by and through the County Council has caused this 

Amendment to be executed in its name and on its behalf by the Chair of County Council  and the County 

Administrator and to be attested to by the Clerk of County Council. The Company has caused this 

Amendment to be executed by its duly authorized officer, all as of the day and year first above written. 

 

 

FOR ANDERSON COUNTY 

 

 

_______________________________________ 

Tommy Dunn, Chairman 

Anderson County Council 

 

 

_______________________________________ 

Rusty Burns 

County Administrator 

 

(SEAL) 

 

ATTEST: 

 

___________________________ 

Lacey A. Croegaert 

Clerk to County Council 

 

 

FOR THE COMPANY 

 

ONE WORLD TECHNOLOGIES, INC.: 

 

 

_______________________________________ 

 

by: ____________________________________ 

      Its Duly Authorized Representative 

 

 



PPAB 6399163v5 

EXHIBIT A TO AMENDMENT 

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION 

 

TMS# Acreage 

143-00-04-016-000 292.23 

143-00-04-002-000 124.90 

169-00-05-001-000 6.12 

169-00-05-002-000 .46 

169-00-03-007-000 3.87 

169-00-03-006-000 89.88 

218-00-01-038-000 15.62 

218-00-01-001-000 12.84 

218-00-01-039-000 1.36 

218-00-01-040-000 .41 

169-00-03-004-000 12.36 

169-00-02-003-000 100.15 
 



 

 

ANDERSON COUNTY 

RESOLUTION 2021-050  

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING (1) THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A FEE 

IN LIEU OF TAX AND INCENTIVE AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN ANDERSON 

COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA (THE “COUNTY”) AND A COMPANY IDENTIFIED 

FOR THE TIME BEING AS PROJECT STINGRAY, ACTING FOR ITSELF, ONE OR 

MORE AFFILIATES, AND/OR OTHER PROJECT SPONSORS (COLLECTIVELY, 

THE “COMPANY”), PURSUANT TO WHICH THE COUNTY SHALL COVENANT 

TO ACCEPT CERTAIN NEGOTIATED FEES IN LIEU OF AD VALOREM TAXES 

WITH RESPECT TO THE EXPANSION OF CERTAIN FACILITIES IN THE COUNTY 

(COLLECTIVELY, THE “EXPANSION PROJECT”); (2) THE BENEFITS OF A 

MULTI-COUNTY INDUSTRIAL OR BUSINESS PARK TO BE MADE AVAILABLE 

TO THE COMPANY AND THE EXPANSION PROJECT; (3) CERTAIN SPECIAL 

SOURCE REVENUE CREDITS IN CONNECTION WITH THE EXPANSION 

PROJECT; AND (4) OTHER MATTERS RELATING THERETO. 

 

WHEREAS, Anderson County, South Carolina (the “County”), acting by and through its County 

Council (the “Council”), is authorized and empowered under and pursuant to the provisions of the Code of 

Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended (the “Code”), particularly Title 12, Chapter 44 of the Code (the 

“Negotiated FILOT Act”), and Title 4, Chapter 1 of the Code (the “Multi-County Park Act”, or, as to 

Section 4-1-175 thereof, and by incorporation Section 4-29-68 of the Code, the “Special Source Act”) 

(collectively, the “Act”) and by Article VIII, Section 13(D) of the South Carolina Constitution: (i) to enter 

into agreements with certain investors to construct, operate, maintain, and improve certain projects through 

which the economic development of the State of South Carolina (the “State”) will be promoted and trade 

developed by inducing manufacturing and commercial enterprises to locate and remain in the State and thus 

utilize and employ the manpower, agricultural products, and natural resources of the State; (ii) to covenant 

with such investors to accept certain fee in lieu of ad valorem tax (“FILOT”) payments, including, but not 

limited to, negotiated FILOT payments made pursuant to the Negotiated FILOT Act, with respect to a 

project; (iii) to permit investors to claim special source revenue credits against their FILOT payments 

(“Special Source Credits”) to pay certain costs of infrastructure serving the County or improved or 

unimproved real property and personal property, including machinery and equipment, used in the operation 

of a manufacturing or commercial enterprise in order to enhance the economic development of the County 

(“Special Source Improvements”); and (iv) to create, in conjunction with one or more other counties, a 

multi-county industrial or business park in order to afford certain enhanced income tax credits to such 

investors and to facilitate the grant of Special Source Credits; and 

WHEREAS, a company identified for the time being as Project Stingray, acting for itself, one or 

more affiliates, and/or other project sponsors (collectively, the “Company”) proposes to expand certain 

facilities at one or more locations in the County (the “Expansion Project”); and 

WHEREAS, the Company anticipates that, should its plans proceed as expected, it will invest, or 

cause to be invested, at least $8,000,000, in the aggregate, in the Expansion Project; and 

WHEREAS, on the basis of the information supplied to it by the Company, the County has 

determined, inter alia, that the Expansion Project would subserve the purposes of the Act and would be 

directly and substantially beneficial to the County, the taxing entities of the County and the citizens and 

residents of the County due to the investment to be made, or caused to be made, by the Company, which 

contributes to the tax base and the economic welfare of the County, and, accordingly, the County wishes to 

induce the Company to undertake the Expansion Project by offering the benefits of a negotiated FILOT, 

Special Source Credits, and a multi-county industrial or business park as set forth herein, all of which shall 



 

2 

be further described and documented in a Fee in Lieu of Tax and Incentive Agreement to be entered into 

by the County and the Company (the “Incentive Agreement”) and subject to the terms and conditions set 

forth therein. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council, as follows: 

Section 1. As contemplated by Section 12-44-40(I) of the Negotiated FILOT Act, the County 

makes the following findings and determinations: 

(a) The Expansion Project will constitute a “project” within the meaning of the 

Negotiated FILOT Act; and 

(b) The Expansion Project, and the County’s actions herein, will subserve the purposes 

of the Negotiated FILOT Act; and 

(c) The Expansion Project is anticipated to benefit the general public welfare of the 

State and the County by providing services, employment, recreation, or other public benefits not 

otherwise adequately provided locally; and 

(d) The Expansion Project gives rise to no pecuniary liability of the County or 

incorporated municipality or a charge against its general credit or taxing power; and 

(e) The purposes to be accomplished by the Expansion Project are proper 

governmental and public purposes; and 

(f) The benefits of the Expansion Project are greater than the costs. 

Section 2.  

(a) The County hereby agrees to enter into the Incentive Agreement with the 

Company, whereby the Company will agree to satisfy, or cause to be satisfied, certain investment 

requirements with respect to the Expansion Project within certain prescribed time periods in 

accordance with the Negotiated FILOT Act and the County, under certain conditions to be set forth 

in the Incentive Agreement, will agree to accept negotiated fee in lieu of ad valorem tax 

(“Negotiated FILOT”) payments with respect to the Expansion Project. 

(b) (i) The Negotiated FILOT shall be determined using: (1) an assessment ratio 

of 6%, (2) the lowest millage rate or millage rates allowed with respect to the Expansion Project 

pursuant to Section 12-44-50(A)(1)(d) of the Negotiated FILOT Act, which millage rate or millage 

rates shall be fixed pursuant to Section 12-44-50(A)(1)(b)(i) of the Negotiated FILOT Act for the 

full term of the Negotiated FILOT, and which millage rate the parties believe to be 347.8 mills; (3) 

the fair market value of the Expansion Project, determined in accordance with the Negotiated 

FILOT Act; and (4) such other terms and conditions as will be specified in the Incentive Agreement, 

including, without limitation, that the Company, in its sole discretion, may dispose of property and 

replace property subject to Negotiated FILOT payments to the maximum extent permitted by the 

Negotiated FILOT Act. 

(ii) The Negotiated FILOT shall be calculated as provided in this Section 2(b) 

for that portion of the Expansion Project consisting of economic development property under the 

Negotiated FILOT Act.  For each annual increment of investment in such economic development 

property, the annual Negotiated FILOT payments shall be payable for a payment period of thirty 



 

3 

(30) years, all in accordance with Section 12-44-30(21) of the Negotiated FILOT Act.  Accordingly, 

if such economic development property is placed in service during more than one year, each year’s 

investment shall be subject to the Negotiated FILOT for a payment period of thirty (30) years. 

Section 3. The County will use its best efforts to ensure that the Expansion Project will be 

included, if not already included, and will remain, within the boundaries of a multi-county industrial or 

business park pursuant to the provisions of the Multi-County Park Act and Article VIII, Section 13(D) of 

the State Constitution on terms which provide the Company and the Expansion Project with any additional 

benefits afforded by the laws of the State for projects located within multi-county industrial or business 

parks, and which facilitate the County’s provision, and the Company’s receipt, of the Special Source Credits 

described herein. 

Section 4.  

(a) As an additional incentive to induce the Company to locate the Expansion Project 

in the County, and as reimbursement for investment in Special Source Improvements, and subject 

to the requirements of the Special Source Act, the County hereby agrees that the Company shall be 

entitled to receive, and the County shall provide, Special Source Credits against each Negotiated 

FILOT payment due from the Company with respect to the Expansion Project for a period of fifteen 

(15) consecutive tax years, commencing with the tax year for which the initial Negotiated FILOT 

payment is due with respect to the Expansion Project, in an amount equal to forty percent (40%) of 

each such Negotiated FILOT payment. 

(b) In accordance with the Special Source Act, the Special Source Credits authorized 

herein shall not, in the aggregate, exceed the aggregate cost of Special Source Improvements 

funded from time to time by the Company in connection with the Expansion Project. 

Section 5. The provisions, terms, and conditions of the Incentive Agreement shall be subject 

to approval by subsequent Ordinance of the Council.  The Incentive Agreement is to be in substantially the 

form customarily used by the County for similar transactions with such changes therein as shall be approved 

by said Ordinance. 

Section 6. The Chairman of the Council, the County Administrator, and the Clerk to Council, 

for and on behalf of the County, are hereby each authorized, empowered, and directed to do any and all 

things necessary or proper to effect the performance of all obligations of the County under and pursuant to 

this Resolution. 

Section 7. All orders, resolutions, and parts thereof in conflict herewith are to the extent of 

such conflict hereby repealed.  This Resolution shall take effect and be in full force upon adoption by the 

Council. 

 

[End of Resolution] 

  



 

4 

DONE in meeting duly assembled this 19th day of October, 2021. 

 

ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

 

 

By:       

     Tommy Dunn, Chairman of County Council, 

     Anderson County, South Carolina 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

       

Lacey Croegaert, Clerk to County Council, 

Anderson County, South Carolina 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

 

       

Leon Harmon, County Attorney, 

Anderson County, South Carolina 

 



 1 

 
 
 

To: Anderson County Council 

From: Glenn Brill, Director: Parks, Recreation & Tourism Division 

Re: FY 21-22 ATAX Applications 

Date: October 12, 2021 

 

Welcome to our second Pandemic grant year.  The lessons learned during the first 18 months of 

the Pandemic are reflected in the staff & ATAX Committee recommendations: 

• Our strength in outside recreation left us in a much better position than destinations with 

less going on outdoors.  For example, we hosted 10 fishing tournaments with a 

combined economic impact of $6.3 million between January 2020-June 2021.  This 

included a Bassmaster College Series tournament we hosted after a county in North 

Carolina couldn’t permit it due to the state’s COVID regulations.  It was worth $900,000 

to our county’s economy. 

 

This FY is going to the biggest ever for tourism in Anderson County.  Knowing this, we didn’t 

allocate $35,000 of last year’s ATAX funding so we could apply it to this year: 

• In March, we’ll host the fourth Bassmaster Classic in 14 years on Lake Hartwell & the 

third at Green Pond Landing in just seven years.  Each is worth $25 million to our 

county’s economy. 

• In July, Belton, Iva & Anderson County will host a combined six Dixie Youth Baseball & 

Softball State Championships. 

• In August, Belton & Anderson County will host our first Dixie Youth World Series. 

• The SC High School Wrestling Championships return to the Civic Center in February. 

• Again, this year, we’re being asked help two park projects with ATAX which will attract 

tourists: KidVenture 2.0 & Dolly Cooper Park.  The new KidVenture playground will be 

fully ADA-compliant.  Families with special needs children will travel from more than 50 

miles away to experience it.  The improvements we’ve funded the past two grant cycles 

in Dolly now allow it to host baseball tournaments which put heads in beds.  



 2 

Anderson County ATAX Committee  
Requests & Recommendation Summary for FY 2021-2022 

Below is a summary of the requests for Accommodations Tax (ATAX) funding from Anderson County for fiscal year 

2021-2022.  Total ATAX Funds Requested: $554,299 ($468,165.76 last year).  Total ATAX Funds Available: 

$278,378.14 ($243,623.20 last year). 
 

1 Applicant:  Anderson Area Y 

 Project:  Midnight Flight Roadrace 

 Duration:  8/26/22 

Description: The race projects 275 out-of-town runners and 200 room nights.  The organization 

is requesting ATAX funding for advertising in runners’ magazines, brochures & 

print & TC ads in SC, NC & GA.  

 FY 21 Allocation: $0 

 FY 22 Request: $4,000 

 Recommendation: $0 

 Committee:  $0 

Council:  $ 

 

2 Applicant:  Anderson Arts Center 

 Project:  Annual Tourism Projects 

 Duration:  September 2021-August 2022 

Description: It seeks ATAX for printing, invitations, program & brochures.    

FY 21 Allocation: $0 

FY 22 Request: $15,000  

Recommendation: $3,000 

Committee: $3,000 

Council:  $ 

 

3 Applicant:  Anderson Christmas Lights 

 Project:  Advertising 

 Duration:  November/December 2021 

Description: It seeks ATAX for billboard, print, radio & tv ads to tourists.    

FY 21 Allocation: NA 

FY 22 Request: $10,000  

Recommendation: $0 

Committee: $0 

Council:  $ 

 

4 Applicant:   Anderson County CVB 

 Project:  National Professional Fishing League 

 Duration:  4/24/30/22 

Description: ATAX is requested to pay for advertising the tournament to tourists ($5,000), 

tourist shuttle transportation & law enforcement security for tourists at Green 

Pond Landing ($7,500) and marketing materials ($5,000). The event will fill 

1,500 room nights & generate $450,000 in economic impact. 

FY 21 Allocation: N/A 

FY 22 Request: $20,000 

Recommendation: $2,500 

 Committee:  $2,500 

 Council:  $ 

 



 3 

5 Applicant:   Anderson County CVB 

 Project:  Crappie USA Classic 

 Duration:  10/14-16/21 

Description: This event will fill more than 1,800 hotel room nights & generate economic 

impact of $500,000.  $7,500 is requested for marketing/advertising, $7,500 for 

tourist shuttle transportation & law enforcement to serve tourists, $5,000 for 

marketing. 

FY 21 Allocation: N/A 

FY 22 Request: $20,000 

Recommendation: $2,500 

 Committee:  $2,500 

 Council:  $ 

 

6 Applicant:   Anderson County CVB 

 Project:  Operational Funding 

 Duration:  7/1/21-6/30/22 

Description: ATAX would help pay for the operation of its Visitor Center including common 

area maintenance, insurance & utilities. 

FY 21 Allocation: $20,000 

FY 22 Request: $20,000  

Recommendation: $15,000 

 Committee:  $15,000  

 Council:  $  

 

7 Applicant:   Anderson County CVB 

 Project:  Advertising (Digital/Social ads) 

 Duration:  7/1/21-6/30/22 

Description: ATAX will pay for: print advertising ($25,000), including State Travel Guide, 

digital/social ads ($3,500) and radio ads/trade shows ($25,000). 

FY 21 Allocation: $9,000 

FY 22 Request: $25,000 

Recommendation: $9,728.14 

 Committee:  $9,728.14 

 Council:  $ 

 

8 Applicant:   Anderson County CVB 

 Project:  Bassmaster High School National Championship 

 Duration:  8/8-13/22 

Description: This tournament’s economic impact will be $1.5 million, and it’ll fill 5,000 room 

nights.  Advertising & Marketing ($6,500).  Tourist shuttle transportation and law 

enforcement security for tourists ($10,000).  Promotional materials ($7,500). 

FY 21 Allocation: N/A 

FY 22 Request: $25,000 

Recommendation: $15,000 

 Committee:  $15,000 

 Council:  $ 

 

 

 

 

 



 4 

9 Applicant:   Anderson County CVB 

 Project:  SC High School League Wrestling Championships 

 Duration:  2/24-26/22 

Description: This event annually generates 1,000 hotel room nights. ATAX would pay for law 

enforcement security & EMS services to tourists ($9,500), Hospitality & Staffing 

(12,500).   

FY 21 Allocation: $0 

FY 22 Request: $20,000 

Recommendation: $10,000 

 Committee:  $10,000 

 Council:  $ 

 

10 Applicant:   Anderson County CVB 

 Project:  Marketing  

 Duration:  7/1/21-6/30/22 

Description: ATAX is requested for: printed materials, including a Meeting Planners Guide, 

Visitor’s Guide & rack card ($15,500), Promotional materials including Green 

Pond Landing dry bags ($17,500), public relations, including two angler 

sponsorships ($20,500). 

FY 21 Allocation: $16,500 

FY 22 Request: $25,000 

Recommendation: $0 

 Committee:  $0 

 Council:  $ 

 

11 Applicant:   Anderson County CVB 

 Project:  Dixie Youth Baseball State Championship  

 Duration:  7/8-13/22 

Description: 2,500 room nights & $940,000 in economic impact.  ATAX is requested for: 

Marketing & advertising ($15,000) & Hospitality ($7,500). 

FY 21 Allocation: N/A 

FY 22 Request: $25,000 

Recommendation: $13,000 

 Committee:  $13,000 

 Council:  $ 

 

12 Applicant:   Anderson Convention and Visitors Bureau 

 Project:  Dixie Youth Baseball World Series 

 Duration:  7/28/22-8/3/22 

Description: 2,500 room nights & $1.1 million economic impact.  36 teams from 12 SE states.  

ATAX is requested for: Marketing & advertising ($15,000) & hospitality 

$30,000). 

FY 21 Allocation: N/A 

FY 22 Request: $30,000 

Recommendation: $20,000 

 Committee:  $20,000 

 Council:  $ 

 

 

 

 



 5 

13 Applicant:   Anderson Convention and Visitors Bureau 

 Project:  Bassmaster Classic  

 Duration:  2/25/22-3/7/22 

Description: $25 million in economic impact, more than 5,000 room nights.  This is the third 

Classic Green Pond will host in just 7 years.  ATAX is requested for: Advertising 

& marketing ($25,000), Tourist shuttle transportation ($15,000), Law 

enforcement to serve tourists ($15,000). 

FY 21 Allocation: N/A 

FY 22 Request: $55,000 

Recommendation: $30,000 

 Committee:  $30,000 

 Council:  $ 

 

14 Applicant:  Anderson County 

 Project:  KidVenture 2.0 Playground 

 Duration:  11/21-5/22 

Description: ATAX would help fund phase one of the new playground which will be all-

inclusive & fully ADA-compliant.  Parents with special needs children will travel 

from more than 50 miles away to experience this playground. 

FY 21 Allocation: N/A 

FY 22 Request: $75,000 

Recommendation: $75,000 

Committee: $75,000 

Council: $ 

 

15 Applicant:  Anderson County 

 Project:  Dolly Cooper Park  

 Duration:  11/21-5/22 

Description: ATAX would help build phase one of the park’s Master Plan.  It will include a 

picnic shelter, playground & parking lot. 

FY 21 Allocation: $32,173.76 

FY 22 Request: $25,000 

Recommendation: $25,000 

Committee: $25,000 

Council: $ 

 

16 Applicant:  Anderson County Museum 

 Project:  Promotion of Museum Events & Exhibits 2021-22 

 Duration:  11/1/21-8/1/22 

Description: ATAX funding would go towards digital ads ($15,000), print ads ($15,000) and 

social media advertising ($15,000).  It will advertise 24 permanent exhibits, 

special events and programs to tourists. 

FY 21 Allocation: $7,500 

FY 22 Request: $28,000 

Recommendation: $12,000 

Committee:  $12,000 

Council:  $ 

 

 

 

 



 6 

 

17 Applicant:  Anderson Quilt Guilds 

 Project:  Anderson Area Quilt Show 

 Duration:  8/19-20/22 

Description: 114 tourists attended its 2019 show.  ATAX will fund ads in quilting magazines.  

17 room nights are projected. 

FY 21 Allocation: N/A 

FY 22 Request: $1,000 

Recommendation: $0 

Committee:  $0 

Council:  $ 

 

18 Applicant:  Anderson Sports & Entertainment Center 

 Project:  Border Wars Wrestling Tournament 

 Duration:  January 22-23, 2022 

Description: This wrestling tournament will attract 250 competitors from SC, 

GA, NC & TN along with their coaches & family members.  800-1,000 spectators 

are projected each day.  $1,500 is requested for advertising to tourists.  $2,800 for 

law enforcement to serve tourists.  Ineligible requests included paying referees, 

wrestling mats & timing clocks and staffing. 

 

FY 21 Allocation: N/A 

FY 22 Request: $6,000 ($4,300 eligible) 

Recommendation: $3,500 

Committee:  $3,500 

Council:  $ 

 

19 Applicant:  Anderson Senior Follies 

Project:  Hindsight is 2022 

Duration:  3/10-13/22 

Description: ATAX would pay for radio spots and publicity.  All five shows sell-out (5,500 

people).  100 room nights are projected.  COVID cancelled its shows in both 2020 

& 2021.  Given current conditions, 2022 looks iffy at best. 

FY 21 Allocation: N/A 

FY 22 Request: $2,500 

Recommendation: $0 

Committee: $0 

Council: $ 

 

20 Applicant:  Bart Garrison Ag. Museum of SC 

Project:  Marketing 

Duration:  11/21-6/22 

Description: ATAX would fund social media ads to tourists ($7,000), billboards ($2,000) & 

Catbus ads ($1,000, not eligible for funding).  400 room nights are projected  

FY 21 Allocation: $0 

FY 22 Request: $10,000 ($9,000 eligible) 

Recommendation: $0 

Committee: $0 

Council: $ 

 

 



 7 

 

21 Applicant:  Belton Alliance 

 Project:  SC Chili Cook-Off 

 Duration:  5/13-15/22 

Description: ATAX is requested for print, radio & social media ads to tourists.  

 FY 21 Allocation: N/A 

 FY 22 Request: $5,000 

 Recommendation: $2,500 

 Committee:  $2,500 

 Council:  $ 

 

22 Applicant:  Belton Area Museum Assn. 

 Project:  Promotion of Museum & Events 

 Duration:   8/21-7/22 

Description: ATAX would pay for an ad in the Upcountry SC Visitor Guide ($1,150), social 

media ads ($500) and Website hosting ($500). 

FY 21 Allocation: $0 

FY 22 Request: $2,000 

 Recommendation: $1,000 

Committee:  $1,000 

Council:  $ 

 

23 Applicant:  Belton Center for the Arts 

 Project:  Kitchen Remodel 

 Duration:  9/21-12/21 

Description: The Center requests ATAX to paint it’s façade & install a wrought iron handrail. 

FY 21 Allocation: $2,000 

 FY 22 Request: $5,000 

Recommendation:  $0 

Committee:  $0 

Council:  $ 

 

24 Applicant:  Belton Tennis Association 

Project: Hall of Fame, Men’s Collegiate, Southern Conf., Palmetto Champ., SPUD 

Doubles 

 Duration:  10/1-3/21, 11/5-7/21, 4/9/22, 5/28-30/22, 7/15-16/22 

Description: The Palmetto Championships is the largest junior tennis tournament in South 

Carolina. Entries for next year’s event are expected to be more than 350 players, 

with most players bringing 2 to 3 people with them. ATAX funding will be used 

for advertising, promotions and billboards. The SPUD attracts 100 people, The 

Hall of Fame 100 and the SC Men’s Collegiate 64 and The Southern Conf. 

Championships 64. 

FY 21 Allocation: $6,000 

FY 22 Request: $10,000 

Recommendation: $8,000 

Committee: $8,000 

Council: $ 

 

 

 

 



 8 

 

25 Applicant:  Cancer Assn. of Anderson 

Project: Hot Air Affair: Rising Above Cancer 

 Duration:  9/2-5/22 

Description: 30 hot air balloons will participate.  ATAX would fund advertising ($3,200 

eligible), hotel rooms for pilots (not eligible), Porta potties (not eligible) 

FY 21 Allocation: N/A 

FY 22 Request: $15,000 ($3,200 eligible) 

Recommendation: $0 

Committee: $0 

Council: $ 

 

26 Applicant:  City of Anderson 

Project:  Holiday Ice in Wren Park 

Duration:  12/3/21-1/17/22 

Description: ATAX would fund rack cards for visitor center’s & billboard advertising to 

tourists.   

FY 21 Allocation: N/A 

FY 22 Request: $2,000 

Recommendation: $2,000 

Committee:  $2,000 

Council:  $ 

 

27 Applicant:  Clemson Kennel Club 

Project:  AKC Dog Show & Trials @ the Garrison Arena 

Duration:  1/7/9/22 

Description: The club’s 2021 show attracted 950 entries from more than 50 miles away.  It 

seeks money to buy national magazine advertising to increase out-of-state entries.   

FY 21 Allocation: $0 

FY 22 Request: $2,000 

Recommendation: $0 

Committee:  $0 

Council:  $ 

 

28 Applicant:  Foothills Bridge Club 

 Project:  Electric City Sectional 

 Duration:   3/5-7/22 

Description: ATAX will fund mailing a flyer to bridge groups in GA, NC & TN & online ads 

on Bridgebase.  200 tourists will participate. 

FY 21 Allocation: N/A 

FY 22 Request: $1,000 

 Recommendation: $500 

Committee:  $500 

Council:  $ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 9 

 

29 Applicant:  Friends of Sadlers Creek SP 

 Project:  Trail Extension Project 

 Duration:   6/21-12/21 

Description: Three miles will be added to the parks’ trail system.  ATAX would fund rental of 

an excavator. 

FY 21 Allocation: N/A 

FY 22 Request: $5,000 

 Recommendation: $0 

Committee:  $0 

Council:  $ 

 

30 Applicant:  GAMAC 

 Project:  2021-22 Concert Season 

 Duration:   11/14/21-5/1/22 

Description: ATAX will fund radio, TV & billboard ads and direct mail to zip codes more than 

50 miles from Anderson.  It’s 20-21 season was cancelled by the Pandemic. 

FY 21 Allocation: N/A 

FY 22 Request: $2,000 

 Recommendation: $0 

Committee:  $0 

Council:  $ 

 

31 Applicant:  Iva Community Improvement Assn. 

 Project:  Let’s do it Again Better 2022! 

 Duration:   September 2021-September 2022 

Description: ATAX money will be used for operating the RevIva Visitor Center and updating 

some of its exhibits 

FY 21 Allocation: $2,000  

FY 22 Request: $2,500 

 Recommendation: $2,000 

Committee:  $2,000 

Council:  $ 

 

32 Applicant:  Iva Community Recreation 

 Project:  Dixie Youth Softball State Tournaments 

 Duration:   7/22 

Description: It will host four Dixie softball tournaments, projects 2,500 room nights & 

$946,000 in economic impact.  ATAX would fund advertising to tourists & law 

enforcement to serve tourists. 

FY 21 Allocation: $2,000 

FY 21 Request: $20,000  

 Recommendation: $13,000  

Committee:  $13,000 

Council:  $ 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 10 

 

33 Applicant:  Main Street Program of Anderson 

 Project:  Regional Promotion 

 Duration:   7/1/21-6/30/22 

Description: The Main St. Facebook page has 45,000+ followers, reaches 7,000,000 each year.   

ATAX would pay for social media ads to people more than 50 miles from 

Anderson. 

 FY 21 Allocation: $0 

 FY 22 Request: $5,000 

 Recommendation: $2,000 

Committee:  $2,000 

Council:  $ 

 

34 Applicant:  Main Street Program of Anderson 

 Project:  B4 Father’s Day Car Show 

 Duration:   6/18/22 

Description: ATAX would pay for ads to people more than 50 miles from Anderson. 

 FY 21 Allocation: N/A 

 FY 22 Request: $2,500 

 Recommendation: $1,000 

Committee:  $1,000 

Council:  $ 

 

35 Applicant:  Main Street Program of Anderson 

 Project:  Holiday Walk & Tree Lighting 

 Duration:   12/3/21 

Description: ATAX would pay for ads to people more than 50 miles from Anderson. 

 FY 21 Allocation: N/A 

 FY 22 Request: $2,000 

 Recommendation: $0 

Committee:  $0 

Council:  $ 

 

36 Applicant:  Main Street Program of Anderson 

 Project:  Block Party 

 Duration:   April-June 2022 

Description: ATAX would pay for ads to people more than 50 miles from Anderson. 

 FY 21 Allocation: N/A 

 FY 22 Request: $2,500 

 Recommendation: $0 

Committee:  $0 

Council:  $ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 11 

 

37 Applicant:  Meals on Wheels-Anderson 

 Project:  Hartwell Lake Charity Run 

 Duration:   6/9-11/22 

Description: Applicant projects 150 room nights.  ATAX would pay for online advertising to 

reach boat enthusiasts including Poker Runs America & Offshore Only and 

billboards.  120 boats participated this year, including boats from AL & TN. 

 FY 20 Allocation: $1,000 

 FY 22 Request: $1,000  

 Recommendation: $0 

Committee:  $0 

Council:  $ 

 

38 Applicant:  Mill Town Players 

 Project:  Make-up County Lights 

 Duration:   October 2021 

Description: ATAX is requested to install lights at the make-up counter.  ATAX can’t be used 

for this. 

 FY 21 Allocation: N/A 

 FY 21 Request: $2,189 ($0 eligible) 

 Recommendation: $0 

Committee:  $0 

Council:  $ 

 

39 Applicant:  Pendleton Historic Foundation 

Project: Foundation & Event Promotion 

 Duration:   July 2021-June 2022 

Description: $230 for Facebook ads, $1,200 for promotional printing, $399 for a Google Maps 

business listing & $650 for an ad in Town Bride Magazine.  

 FY 21 Allocation:  $2,000 

 FY 22 Request: $2,500 

 Recommendation: $2,000 

Committee:  $2,000 

Council:  $ 

 

40 Applicant:  SC Upstate Equine Council 

Project: Spring Fling Horse Show 

 Duration:   April 1-3, 2022 

Description: It requests $2,700 for advertising to tourists & $750 for law enforcement to serve 

tourists.  The other items in its budget aren’t ATAX eligible. The applicant 

projects 25 room nights. 

 

 FY 21 Allocation:  $3,000 

 FY 22 Request: $3,450  

 Recommendation: $2,500 

Committee:  $2,500 

Council:  $ 

 

 

 

 



 12 

 

41 Applicant:  SC Athletic Coaches Assn. 

Project: North-South Soccer All-Star Game 

 Duration:   6/17-18/22 

Description: ATAX is requested for billboards ($3,200).  The applicant projects 90-180 room 

nights. 

 FY 21 Allocation:  $0 

 FY 21 Request: $3,000  

 Recommendation: $0 

Committee:  $0 

Council:  $ 

 

42 Applicant:  T. Ed Garrison Arena 

 Project:  Garrison Arena Promotions 

 Duration:   September 2021-July 2022 

Description: They’re requesting money for advertising in regional & national livestock 

publications.    Events at the Arena generate thousands of hotel room nights 

annually and its economic impact is $8.9 million dollars. 

FY 21 Allocation: $5,000 

FY 22 Request: $9,000 

 Recommendation: $3,000 

Committee:  $3,000 

Council:  $ 

 

43 Applicant:  Upstate Heritage Quilt Trail 

 Project:  Quilt Trail Promotion 

 Duration:   10/21-8/22 

Description: It seeks ATAX to fund & distribute a rack card to visitor centers ($310), a web-

based app ($683), social media ads ($2,755) & interpretive signage ($530). 

FY 21 Allocation: N/A 

FY 22 Request: $5,510 

 Recommendation: $1,000 

Committee:  $1,000 

Council:  $ 

 

44 Applicant:  Williamston Springwater Committee 

 Project:  Springwater Festival 

 Duration:   8/27-28/21 

Description: 6,000 attended this year’s event.  ATAX would fund: Billboard & print 

advertising ($1,235), Brochures ($385).  Porta-Potties ($400) are not eligible 

FY 21 Allocation: N/A 

FY 22 Request: $2,000 ($1,620 eligible) 

 Recommendation: $1,000 

Committee:  $1,000 

Council:  $ 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 13 

 

45 Applicant:  Williamston Springwater Committee 

 Project:  Williamston Christmas Park 

 Duration:   11/28/20-1/1/21 

Description: Lighted displays throughout the Christmas season draw 6,000-10,000 visitors 

from the area and across the Upstate. ATAX funds will be used for billboards 

($500) and a rack card in SC Welcome Centers ($150). 

FY 21 Allocation: $650 

FY 22 Request: $650 

 Recommendation: $650 

Committee:  $650 

Council:  $ 

 

 

For more information regarding this year’s funding recommendations, please contact Glenn Brill, Parks, 

Recreation & Tourism Division Director at 260-1092. 












































	Agenda
	3 minutes 10/5/2021
	7a 2021-057
	7b 2021-058
	7c 2021-060
	8a 2021-062
	8b 2021-063
	8c 2021-064
	8d 2021-066
	8e 2021-067
	8f 2021-068
	9a R2021-048
	9b r2021-049
	9c R2021-050
	10 ATAX
	11 Motor Grader
	12 Transfers
	16a Paving
	16b Special Projects
	16c Budget Transfers



